Location: Town Office, Council Chambers
21 Water Street, 2nd Floor

AGENDA
Special Council Meeting January 27, 2025

5:00 PM

A. (5010225-1) Council enters Executive Session with the Airport Director for
the purpose of discussing economic development that premature disclosure
would prejudice the position of the Town, pursuant to MRSA Title 1, Section 405
(6)C.

B. (S010225-2) Council enters Executive Session for the purpose of
discussing a personnel matter, pursuant to MRSA Title 1, Section 405(6)A.

V. Adjournment




Location: Town Office, Council Chambers
21 Water Street, 2nd Floor

Viewing on: Pioneer Cable — Channel 400
Spectrum Cable — Channel 1301

Public Participation thru Zoom: Meeting ID: 856 7271 4460
NO PASSCODE NEEDED
CALL-IN: 1-929-205-6099
AGENDA
Regular Council Meeting January 27, 2025

6:00 PM

Pledge of Allegiance

Public Comments

I Minutes: FY 2025 Public Hearing, Regular Council Meeting of January 13,
2025, & Special Council Meeting of January 16, 2025.

Il Old Business

A (8010125-2) Council appoints to act as the Interim
Town Manager.

. New Business:

A. (010125-1) Council affirms the resolution to authorize the Council Chair to
renew the Ambulance Service Contract with Ambulance Medical Billing (AMB) and
authorizes the Chair to sign all documents pertaining to this Contract.

This will replace (010125-6) from January 13, 2025 Regular Council Meeting that
authorized the Town Manager to sign.

B. (010125-2) Council approves the application to the Division of Liquor
Licensing and Enforcement by Temple Theatre, LLC located at 20 Market Square,
for renewal of liquor license.

(Public Hearing)

Approval required by the state,



C. (010125-3) Council approves the application for a Victualer License for
Taste of China Lin, INC located at 127 Military Street.

(Public Hearing)

New Owners.

D. (010125-4) Council affirms the resolution to authorize the Interim Town
Manager or the Public Works Director to enter into and sign all documents
pertaining to the revised agreement with Sewall for the Reservoir Hill Road
Reconstruction Project.

This is the next phase for the project.

E. (010125-5) Council reappoints Mackenzie Jenkins to the Parks &
Recreation Advisory Board for a 2-Year Term.
Thank you for volunteering.

F. (010125-6) Council affirms the resolution to authorize and direct Nancy
Ketch, Community Development Director & Grant Writer to sign any documents
pertaining to the Northern Border Regional Commission award in the amount of
$978,880 for the Airport Fuel Farm Replacement Project.

This is required when there is a change of authorized signers for the quarterly and
annual reports.

IV. Discussion and Reports
A. StoryWalk Presentation by Jennie Schools

B. Councilors’ Remarks

V. Adjournment



PUBLIC HEARING ON BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025

MONDAY, JANUARY 6, 2025

1. Call to Order. (make note of any councilor not present)

Chair Torres called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM with all councilors present except
Councilor E. McLaughlin, who was excused.

2. Council vote on each department budget, as listed.

Administration - $626,943
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Administration budget of $626,943.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $626,943 for Administration.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

Assessing - $129,056
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Assessing budget of $129,056.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $129,056 for Assessing.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.

Protection - $556,608
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Protection budget of $556,608.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.



It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $556,608 for Protection.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J, McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

Police - $1,662,581
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Police budget of $1,662,581.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $1,662,581 for Police.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.

Fire - $686,485
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Fire budget of $686,485.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $686,485 for Fire.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

Ambulance - $983,982
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Ambulance budget of $983,982.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $983,982 for Ambulance.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.



The order passed.

Health & Social Services - $32,372

Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Health & Social Services budget of
$32,372.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $32,372 for Health & Social Services.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

Code Enforcement - $79,385
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Code Enforcement budget of $79,385.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $79,385 for Code Enforcement.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.
Community Development - $68,858

Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Community Development budget of
$68,858.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $68,858 for Community Development.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.



Cemeteries - $111,074
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Cemeteries budget of $111,074.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $111,074 for Cemeteries.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.

Public Buildings — Town Office - $37.831
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Public Buildings budget of $37,831.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $37,831 for Public Buildings.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes, Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

White Building - $7,964
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on White Building budget of $7,964.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $7,964 for White Building.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.

Public Works - $1,316.878
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Public Works budget of $1,316,878.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.



It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $1,316,878 for Public Works.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.
Parks & Recreation - $291,931

Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Parks & Recreation budget of
$291,931.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $291,931 for Parks & Recreation.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.

Parks Maintenance - $183,248
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Parks Maintenance budget of $183,248.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $183,248 for Parks Maintenance.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

Arena - $287,454
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Arena budget of $287,454.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $287,454 for Arena.



Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.

Airport - $206,151
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Airport budget of $206,151.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $206,151 for Airport.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

Planning Board - $2,850
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Planning Board budget of $2,850.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $2,850 for Planning Board.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.

Employee Benefits - $1,978,462

Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Employee Benefits budget of
$1,978,462,

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $1,978,462 for Employee Benefits.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.



Debt Service - $485,951
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Debt Service budget of $485,951.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $485,951 for Debt Service.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.

Other Agencies
Life Flight - $1,514

Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Life Flight budget of $1,514.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $1,514 for Life Flight.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, no; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.
Chamber of Commerce - $28,000

Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Chamber of Commerce budget of
$28,000.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $28,000 for Chamber of Commerce.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, no; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.

Library - $179,130
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Library budget of $179,130.



There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $179,130 for Library.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.

NMDC - $10,813
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on NMDC budget of $10,813.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $10,813 for NMDC.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

Aroostook Area on Aging - $0
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Aroostook Area on Aging budget of $0.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $0 for Aroostook Area on Aging.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.

Maine Families Aroostook - $0

Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Maine Families Aroostook budget of
$0.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.



It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $0 for Maine Families Aroostook.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

Maine Public Television - $0
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Maine Public Television budget of $0.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $0 for Maine Public Television.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.

ACAP - $0
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on ACAP budget of $0.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $0 for ACAP.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

Putnam House - $0
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Putnam House budget of $0.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councitor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $0 for Putnam House.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.



The order passed.

Gary Owen House Searsport, ME - $0
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Garen Owen House budget of $0.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $0 for Gary Owen House.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes,; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

Snowmobile Club - $2,200
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Snowmobile Club budget of $2,200.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $2,200 for Snowmobile Club

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, no; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.
Houlton Canopy Crew - $2.000

Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Houlton Canopy Crew budget of
$2,000.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $2,000 for Houlton Canopy Crew.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

Temple Theatre Sponsorship - $0

10



Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Temple Theatre Sponsorship budget
of $0.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $0 for Temple Theatre Sponsorship.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.

SADC - $28,000
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on SADC budget of $28,000.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $28,000 for SADC.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.
Southern Aroostook Soil & Water Cons. District - $0

Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Southern Aroostook Soil & Water
Cons. District budget of $0.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $0 for Southern Aroostook Soil & Water Cons. District.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.
Tax Abatements - $20,000

Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Tax Abatements budget of $20,000.
There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

11



It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $20,000 for Tax Ahatements.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

Projects - $19,250
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Projects budget of $19,250.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $19,250 for Projects.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.

Roads - $200,000
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Roads budget of $200,000.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $200,000 for Roads.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

Reservoir Hili Road (New)- $150,000

Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Reservoir Hill Road budget of
$150,000.

Carl Young, Houlton resident and member of BBR asked that it be pointed out that this is
for the first payment of financing the Reservoir Hill Road project. Chair Torres noted that

she felt it had been made clear at the last meeting and thanked Cari for the reminder.

The Chair closed the Public Hearing.

12



It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $150,000 for Reservoir Hill Road.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.

Grant Match - $5,000
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Grant Match budget of $5,000.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $5,000 for Grant Match.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

Capital Reserve - $0
Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Capital Reserve budget of $0.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $0 for Capital Reserve.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.

Tax Increment Finance - $322,241

Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on Tax Increment Finance budget of
$322,241.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.
It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the

appropriation of $322,241 for Tax Increment Finance.

13



Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

Mandates - $4,045,008

County - $839,505

RSU #29 - $3,205,503

Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on the Total Mandates amount of
$4,045,008 that includes County Tax of $839,505 and RSU 29 amount of $3,205,503.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
appropriation of $4,045,008 for Mandates.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

3. Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on the total budget expenditures of
$14,749,220 as an amount not to exceed.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
order.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes.

The order passed.

4. Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open that Council authorize the use of up
to $14,749,220 from revenues to cover the total municipal budget as approved.

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the
order.

14



Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor
Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

5. Adjournment: On motion by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J.
McLaughlin, the meeting adjourned at 6:25 PM with all in favor.

15



Regular Council Meeting
January 13, 2025

Chair Torres called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM with all councilors present.

Public Comments

Patrick Bruce, Ludlow resident spoke his concerns about the town’s camera system. He noted that
he feels it is illegal for the town to have such a system. He also noted that proposals for the camera
system were not asked for.

Carl Young, Houlton resident asked when the rescheduled Roads Workshop would be. It was
announced that it would be on January 21! at 6:00 PM. Carl asked what the nature of the meeting
would entail. Chair Torres noted that it would be for Public Works Director, Chris Stewart to share
his 3-year plan with the Council. It was noted that there will be another meeting at a later date for
the public to ask questions.

1 Minutes: It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin that the
Special & Regular Council Meeting minutes of December 9, 2024 be approved as presented.

Councilor E. McLaughlin stated that she would like her statement “She stated that she has
concerns about the changes and additions in the ordinance as she has been asking for months
for the town to look for a resolution in regard to the ability to have a small business or friend
dispose of garbage.” Be amended to: *She stated that she has concerns about the lack of
changes and additions made to the ordinance as she has been asking for months for the town to
look for a resolution in regard to the ability to have a small business or friend dispose of garbage.
She stated that she was disappointed that no one got back to her regarding her concerns on the
monopoly. *

[ Old Business

A, ($120124-2) Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on the following: The Town
of Houlton ordains the Lease Agreement between the Town of Houlton and Travis Coker for a one
(1) year lease for property located at Houlton International Airport for $500 per month. (Note:
Document in its entirety is available for review at the Town Office during normal business hours.)
There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin to approve the order.

Town Manager Smith noted that this is the same lease as the last tenant at this location.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor Peters,
yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor E. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

B. {$120124-3) Chair Torres declared the Public Hearing open on the following: The Town
of Houlton ordains that Chapter 10, Article V Solid Waste Management Ordinance of the Houlton
code be amended as follows: (old words lined through, new words underlined)

There being no public comments, the Chair closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor Horvath to approve the order.

1



Town Manager Smith noted that he felt the amendments to the ordinance were a better option
than what the town currently had.

Councilor E. McLauglin stated that she agrees with most of the changes that were made but does
not agree with the several lines that use the word exclusive and feels that it is unacceptable. She
stated that she would like to see this tabled to allow for changes regarding allowing people to
have the choice of who picks up their trash.

It was moved by Councilor E. McLaughlin to table this item. No second.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor E. McLaughlin, no; Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor
Matthews, yes; Councilor Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

. New Business:

A, {010125-1) It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin that
Council confirm the Town Manager’s appointment of Nichol R. Roy as Tax Collector.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor Peters,
yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor E. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

B. (010125-2) it was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin that
Council confirm the Tax Collector’s appointment of Khylee J. Wampler as Deputy Tax Collector.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor Peters,
yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor E. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

C. {010125-3) It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor Horvath that
Council accept the donation of $10,000 from the Christopher and Nancy Pierce Charitable
Foundation for the Houlton Parks & Recreation Department.

Everyone thanked the foundation for this generous donation.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor Peters,
yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor E. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

D. (010125-4) It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin that
Council accept the donation of $1,000 from an anonymous donor for the Houlton Parks &
Recreation Department.

Everyone thanked the donor for this generous donation.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor Peters,
yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor E. McLaughlin, yes.



The order passed.

E. {010125-5) It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin that
Council reappoint Peter Howe to the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board for a 3-Year Term.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor Peters,
yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor E. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

F. (010125-6) It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin that
Council authorize the Town Manager to re-enter into an Ambulance Service Contract with
Ambulance Medical Billing (AMB) and sign all documents pertaining to this Contract.

Councilor E. McLaughlin stated that she wished she knew more about this and would like to
consider tabling the order.

Chief Milton Cone explained that the town has been using this company since 2020 and what an
excellent company they are to work with. He noted that the company provides monthly statistics
and would like to continue the partnership with them.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor E. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor
Matthews, yes; Councilor Peters, yes; Councitor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

G. {010125-7) It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor J. McLaughlin that
Council authorize the updated Houlton Ambulance fees to be effective immediately, (Document is
available at the Town Office during normal business hours.)

Chief Cone explained that the amounts were updated to reflect what insurance companies will
reimburse for.

Councilor E. McLaughlin stated her concerns about the large increase creating financial hardship
for the uninsured.

It was the consensus of everyone that the fees be reassessed annually.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor Peters,
yes; Councilor Matthews, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor E. McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

v. Discussion and Reports

A. SADC Proposal
Johanna Johnston, Executive Director explained the proposed Padmount transformer that could

be purchased with Downtown TIF monies and how it would benefit the town. Houlton Water
Company employees explained that the current transformer is at capacity and the new one is
more modern and easier to maintain.

Consensus of Council was to vote on this at the next meeting.



B. Cemetery Fees
Chief Cone explained that the fees haven't been updated since 2013. He noted that the fee

structure is part of the Cemetery Ordinance and would like to eliminate that to be able to update
fees as needed.

C. Town Managers Report

Town Manager Smith stated that the amendments on the Airport TIF were in process and would
hopefully be ready by the next meeting. He noted that the Deputy Clerk position is still open and
still accepting resumes. He reminded everyone that Moosestompers Weekend was January 31%'-
February 2", He reminded everyone to register their dogs by January 315! to avoid a late fee.

D. Councilors’ Remarks

Councilor Peters stated that he told the Town Manager what the upcoming Executive Session was
going to be about because he felt bad. He stated that the process that’s been taking place seems
dirty to him. He stated that he was told what was going to happen in the meeting and was not
satisfied with this process. He stated that he felt all councilors should be included.

Councilor Matthews seconded Councilor Peters previous statement. She stated that she takes the
chair she sits in very seriously and feels as though she might not be taken seriously enough. She
stated that transparency was important and feels the Council needs to do better.

V. (010125-8) It was moved by Councilor J. McLaughlin, seconded by Councilor Lake that
Council enter Executive Session with the Town Manager and the Police Chief for the purpose of
discussing a personnel matter, pursuant to MRSA Title 1, Section 405(6)A.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor E. McLaughlin, no; Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor
Matthews, yes; Councilor Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

Chair Torres stated that the Police Chief would not be joining them.

Council entered Executive Session at 6:52 PM and returned to Open Session at 7:38 PM.

Chair Torres announced that Town Manager Smith had tendered his resignation effective
immediately,

It was moved by Councilor J. McLaughlin, seconded by Councilor Lake to accept Town Manager,
Jeremy Smith’s resignation.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor E. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor
Matthews, no; Councilor Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor J. McLaughlin, yes.

Resignation was accepted.

Jeremy Smith stated that he enjoyed the community and working for the town and will miss the
staff.

Vi, Adjournment: On motion by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor Horvath, the meeting
adjourned at 7:40 PM with all in favor.



Special Council Meeting
January 16, 2025

Chair Torres called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM with all councilors present, except Councilor
J. McLaughlin, who was excused.

A, (S010125-1) It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Council Horvath that Council
enter Executive Session for the purpose of discussing a personnel matter, pursuant to MRSA Title
1, Section 405({6)A.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Lake, yes; Councilor Peters, yes; Councilor Matthews, yes;
Councilor Horvath, yes, Councilor E. McLaughlin, yes.

Council entered Executive Session at 5:31 PM and returned to Open Session at 6:45 PM.

B. (S010125-2) Council appoints to act as the Interim Town
Manager.

It was moved by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor Horvath to table this until January 27,
2025,

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor E. McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Horvath, yes; Councilor
Matthews, yes; Councilor Peters, yes; Councilor Lake, yes.

The item is tabled.

V. Adjournment: On motion by Councilor Lake, seconded by Councilor Horvath, the meeting
adjourned at 6:47 PM with all in favor.



AMB SERVICE AGREEMENT

THIS AMB SERVICE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into on this
the 3rd day of December, 2024, by and between Town of Houlton, of Houlton, Maine (“CLIENT”),
and Credit Bureau Systems, Inc. d/b/a Ambulance Medical Billing, of 100 Fulton Court, Paducah,
Kentucky 42001-9004 (hereafter “AMB™), pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth herein.
For the consideration stated herein, the parties do hereby agree as follows:

1. Description of Services. AMB is a national ambulance and EMS full-service billing
and revenue cycle management firm, specializing in billing and obtaining payment for services
provided by ambulance services, and CLIENT is in the business of providing ambulance services
to patients in its geographical location. For the term of this Agreement, as defined herein, AMB
shall use commercially reasonable efforts to bill for and obtain reimbursement for CLIENT for the
services rendered by the CLIENT to patients, on or after the Effective Date, by billing patients and
third-party payers, including applicable governmental programs and entities (hereafter the
“Services”). Any additional services which AMB agrees to provide, other than those set forth in
this Agreement, will be explicitly set forth in an Addenda hereto which, if applicable, is
incorporated herein by reference and explicitly made a part of and included in the Services. All
provisions in this Agreement apply to any Addenda unless explicitly stated otherwise.

CLIENT agrees that AMB will be the sole and exclusive provider of the Services during
the terms of this Agreement, and CLIENT will not utilize any other party or entity, or its own
personnel, to bill for services rendered by CLIENT during the term of this Agreement.

2. Effective Date. This Agreement shall be effective for all Services rendered by CLIENT
on and after January 1st, 2025, during the term of this Agreement, as defined herein.

3. Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall be for 3 years from the Effective Date
(hereafter the “Initial Term™). The Initial Term shall automatically renew for an additional 3 year
term (hereafter the “Additional Term”) unless the Agreement is terminated in the time and manner
set forth herein.

4. Fees. Beginning as of the Effective Date, CLIENT shall pay AMB a fee of $22.00 per
billed claim during the Term and any Additional Term (the “Base Fee”), including any wind
down period as defined herein. Net collections shall be defined as the total sum of all money
collected and/or received by AMB and/or CLIENT, for the services rendered by CLIENT after
the Effective Date, during the Initial Term or any Additional Term of this Agreement. It is
specifically agreed that net collections are calculated based on gross dollars received, without
regard to whether CLIENT has been required to refund any money collected to any third-party
payers, including applicable governmental programs and entities. The parties acknowledge that
some direct payments will be made to CLIENT during the term of this Agreement (hereafter
“Direct Payments”) and CLIENT acknowledges that AMB is entitled to be paid its fee, as
described herein, with respect to any such Direct Payments. CLIENT shall report all such Direct
Payments to AMB within 72 hours of receiving said payment.



5. Computer Hardware, Software, and Training. To implement the Services, CLIENT
has requested, and AMB has agreed to provide, the following necessary computer hardware,

software, whether cloud based or otherwise, equipment, and training (hereafter collectively the
“Equipment”) for the following agreed upon prices:

a. Epcr (Modules) - N/A

b. Equipment - N/A

c¢. Online Training — Included
Total Charge — N/A

By executing this Agreement, CLIENT acknowledges that the CLIENT has received and
is using or can use the Equipment, including all training, contemplated hereunder, unless CLIENT
provides written notice, as required herein, to AMB within sixty (60) days of the Effective Date.
Absent written notice, CLIENT waives any claim that it did not receive the Equipment, is not using
the Equipment, or that the Equipment does not work.

CLIENT further acknowledges that it, rather than AMB, has independently chosen all
Equipment and made such investigation into the quality, reliability and need for the Equipment as
it deems necessary. CLIENT agrees that AMB is not vouching for or warranting the Equipment,
or the specific version of Equipment, and CLIENT agrees that AMB will have no liability or
responsibility for any problems, malfunctions, or glitches with the Equipment. CLIENT agrees
and acknowledges that its sole remedy with respect to any problems with any Equipment shall be
as against the vendor or manufacturer and AMB’s only obligation is to assist CLIENT in finding
the appropriate solution so as to provide the Services.

CLIENT and AMB agree and acknowledge that Equipment shall become the property of
the CLIENT, and title shall pass to the CLIENT, upon delivery and/or installation by AMB.

If this Agreement is terminated by CLIENT or AMB, for any reason, prior to the
completion of the Initial Term, CLIENT shall immediately pay AMB the pro-rata portion of the
Total Charge for Equipment that represents the pro-rata portion of the Initial Term that is not
completed due to termination (hereafter the “Pro Rata Charge for Equipment”). By way of
example, if CLIENT terminates this Agreement, for whatever reason, after 19 of 36 months,
CLIENT shall owe and shall pay AMB the Pro Rata Charge for Equipment which shall be equal
to 17/36ths of the Total Charge for Equipment, immediately upon termination, CLIENT
specifically acknowledges that it shall have no right to return the Equipment or any portion of the
Equipment to AMB for a full or partial credit towards the Total Charge for Equipment owed by
CLIENT to AMB.

If CLIENT fulfills its obligations as described herein, including its obligation to pay for
all Base Fees as described herein, and the Agreement is not terminated prior to the expiration of
the Initial Term, CLIENT shall owe no additional amount to AMB for the Equipment,



6. Remit To Address. It is mutually agreed that all payer “remit to” addresses and patient
payments shall be directed to the office of AMB. CLIENT acknowledges that it is a material
breach of this Agreement to change the “remit to” address for any payer or third-party payers,
including applicable governmental programs and entities.

7. Payment of Fees to AMB. AMB shall send an invoice to CLIENT for all Base Fees,
any Pro Rata Charge for Equipment due and owing, and any other charges, as provided for herein,
on or about the 10" day of each month following the close of business for the prior month (hereafter
“Invoice”). Payment is due, and CLIENT shall pay, the Invoice upon receipt. Any Invoice, or
part of any Invoice, that is not paid by CLIENT within thirty (30) days of the Invoice date, shall
be subject to, and CLIENT shall pay, interest at the rate of 1.5% per month until paid.

CLIENT agrees to carefully review each Invoice upon receipt, and CLIENT shall notify
AMB in writing with respect to any charges that are disputed within thirty (30) days of the Invoice
date. All charges on any Invoice that are not disputed in writing by CLIENT within thirty (30)
days of the Invoice date, along with all accrued interest charges, shall be deemed correct, final and
non-modifiable by the parties.

CLIENT agrees to, and hereby does, grant AMB a lien and right of offset on all money
received and to be received on behalf of CLIENT pursuant to this Agreement, as a result of the
Services provided by AMB, up to the amount of all outstanding Invoices.

Should CLIENT fail to pay AMB within thirty (30) days of the date of any Invoice, Client
hereby authorizes and directs AMB to access, withhold, retain and apply sufficient sums for
payment to AMB of all outstanding Invoices from money paid to and on behalf of CLIENT from
payment transactions on patient accounts, whether from insurance companies, governmental
payers, or patients. AMB shall have the right, but not the obligation, to take such steps as allowed
herein, and AMB does not waive the right to take any steps it is allowed to take hereby by
refraining from immediately taking such steps. Aill balances due and owing to AMB after any
offset shall remain due and owing pursuant to the terms set forth herein. Without limiting the
foregoing, CLIENT specifically authorizes and directs AMB to change all “remit to" addresses in
connection with all billing to direct all patient and/or third-party payments to AMB, rather than
CLIENT. AMB shali provide a full and complete accounting to CLIENT of all payments remitted
to AMB on behalf of CLIENT, and AMB shall promptly remit to CLIENT all money remitted to
AMB, net of any money retained and applied towards amounts owed to AMB. If CLIENT fails
to pay any outstanding Invoice within 90 days of the Invoice date, AMB reserves the right to
terminate the Agreement immediately with the wind down period being voided and AMB having
no further obligations hereunder. AMB’s lien, and right of offset, as set forth herein, shall survive
the termination of this Agreement.

8. Bank Account and Treasury Process. A bank account or lockbox account will be set
up and maintained in the name of CLIENT for the purpose of receiving remittances from AMB
(hereafter the “Bank Account™). CLIENT shall be responsible for all bank charges, and AMB
shall have no responsibility or liability for any bank error or omissions. Except as provided for in
Section 7 of this Agreement, AMB shall remit all amounts collected on a daily basis to the
CLIENT’s Bank Account via ACH Electronic Funds Transfer.



9. Operating Procedures. CLIENT agrees and acknowledges that in order for AMB to
provide the Services contemplated hereby, CLIENT must provide, or cause facilities, hospitals, or
other third-party sites at which CLIENT provides services, to provide to AMB accurate and
complete demographic information required by AMB, at no cost to AMB (hereafter the
“Demographic Information”). CLIENT acknowledges that AMB will necessarily rely on the
Demographic Information in providing the Services contemplated herein, and that the timing and
amount of reimbursements and ultimately Net Collections generated by AMB and received by
CLIENT is directly related to the completeness, timeliness and accuracy of the Demographic
Information and other variables, some of which are beyond the control of AMB. CLIENT agrees,
therefore, to provide sufficient employees, and training and oversite of its employees, so that
complete and accurate Demographic Information is captured.

AMB will bill and attempt to collect CLIENT charges in a commercially reasonable
manner and in accordance with all applicable Federal, State, and Local laws and regulations.

a}) Responsibilities of AMB:

(1) Provide coding of all encounters generated by CLIENT, as required by third-
party payers, inclusive of, but not limited to HCPCS, and the appropriate ICD coding schemes,
including but not limited to ICD-9 CM or ICD-10 coding schemes, and such other coding schemes
as may be adopted and/or used.

(2) Issue bills to individuals for all self-pay patients with a minimum of 2 statements
and 1 script letter (Collection Notice). CLIENT will be given limited discretion regarding the
wording to appear on bills and letters.

(3) As necessary, develop and maintain electronic data interfaces directly with
CLIENT’s hospital service sites (where such sites allow) for the collection of patient demographic
data. CLIENT agrees to apply its best efforts to assist AMB in achieving these interfaces,
including, but not limited to interacting with hospital Information Systems staff, Administration,
and others.

(4) Issue initial billing to patients and/or third parties no more than three (3)
business days after receiving all required information.

(5) Submit claims electronically to all third-party payers capable of accepting
claims in electronic format.

(6) Prepare and deliver month-end reports of the billing performance and practice
statistics no later than the tenth (10%) business day of the next month. This duty may be fulfilled
by electronic and/or paper reports.

(7) Produce monthly credit balance reports and advise the CLIENT of refunds due
to both patients and third parties.

(8) Provide toli free phone lines for patient inquiries and adequate phone inquiry
staff to effectively respond to patients in a reasonable amount of time.



(9) Use reasonable efforts to advise CLIENT of any material change in third-party
rules and regulations which are made known to providers and third-party billing agents or
otherwise known to AMB.

b) Responsibilities of CLIENT:

(1) Identify one administrative and one clinical representative to whom AMB may,
respectively, address all matters related to Services under this Agreement. If AMB or its selected
vendor performs coding for CLIENT, CLIENT will also appoint a coding representative. All
CLIENT representatives will have the power to agree, on behalf of CLIENT, to mutually agreed
resolutions to any issues arising in their respective areas, and upon AMB’s request, receive
confirmatory memoranda or letters, which will thereupon be incorporated into this Agreement by
reference. These individuals appointed by CLIENT will provide timely response to all reasonable
requests by AMB.

(2) CLIENT warrants that AMB may rely on the existence of patient signatures on
assignment of benefits, medical information releases and Advance Beneficiary Notices, and
physician signatures on charts and other medical documents, as required for submission of claims
on behalf of CLIENT.,

(3) CLIENT will assist AMB in working with and/or resolving problems related to
work performed by personnel employed by hospitals, labs and other institutions in order to achieve
the goals of this Agreement and the provision of Services by AMB in an efficient and cost-effective
manner,

(4) CLIENT will provide AMB with timely notice at least sixty (60) days prior to
the expected addition or reduction of services so that AMB has adequate time to perform its duties
under the Agreement. AMB will not be responsible for losses or delays in payment resulting from
untimely notice.

(5) It is the mutual goal of CLIENT and AMB to conduct all billing in a compliant
manner. CLIENT will establish and enforce and AMB will follow written billing policies and
procedures for the practice that will serve as the foundation of a practice Compliance Program for
CLIENT and AMB. These billing policies and procedures will be developed and amended, as
needed, in concert with AMB’s Compliance Staff and AMB’s Compliance Plan, as described in
the Agreement, and shall be consistent with AMB’s Compliance Plan.

(6) CLIENT will respond, within five (5) business days, to any documentation
requests, made by payers and/or AMB, and forwarded from AMB.

(7) Upon receipt of the requisite research and worksheets from AMB, CLIENT will
timely issue refunds of overpayments to patients and payers and shall be responsible for
reconciliation of the refund checking account to assure that all refund checks have been cashed.
CLIENT shall promptly notify AMB of the receipt of cancelled checks upon which AMB shall
rely to remove credit balances from CLIENTs accounts receivable files. CLIENT shall be solely
responsible for monitoring and surrendering unclaimed funds to the Treasurer of the State having
escheat jurisdiction over any unclaimed payments.



(8) CLIENT shall be responsible for assuring that all information required for
CLIENT enrollment, if performed by AMB, is provided timely, accurately and completely. AMB
shall not be responsible for delays in provider enrollment and subsequent billing and payment
delays or losses related to delayed response by CLIENT.

(9) CLIENT shall give AMB timely advance notice of any new payment contracts,
HMO or PPO relationships and other contracts or market changes so that AMB may accommodate
these changes, as necessary.

(10) CLIENT shall give AMB a 30-day notice of any fee schedule changes to
update the billing software.

10. Confidentiality. AMB agrees not to disclose to anyone other than CLIENT any
information about CLIENT’s business, fee structure, internal compensation, operating practices
and procedures, methods, managed care or facility contracting strategies, or similar business
information that would commonly be understood to be confidential or any confidential medical
information regarding CLIENT’s patients received in the course of performing the Services
(CLIENT’s “Confidential Information), except as required to bill charges, as legally required, or
as otherwise provided herein.

CLIENT agrees that it will not disclose to third parties information about AMB’s business,
fee structure, strategies, internal compensation, operating practices, procedures, protocols,
methods, vendors, computer hardware and any proprietary software utilized, and resulting or
related processes employed by AMB to provide the Services (AMB’s “Confidential Information™).

Each party’s Confidential Information shall remain the property of that party, during and
after this Agreement. Both parties shall, at all times, have in force a signed Confidentiality
Agreement executed by each full time and part time employee, independent contractor, consultant
and vendor that requires CLIENT’s Confidential Information and AMB’s Confidential
Information to be maintained and protected as set forth herein, which said Confidentiality
Agreement(s) shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. Both parties shall
comply with, and assist the other with compliance with applicable state or federal confidentiality
requirements as to individual patient information. Notwithstanding the foregoing, CLIENT agrees
that AMB may use CLIENT information for research and statistical compilation purposes so long
as CLIENT and patient identifying information is kept confidential in accordance with applicable
law.

11. Software, Proprietary Information, and CLIENT Data. AMB will at all times
during the term of this Agreement, have a valid and current copy of and license for use of any

third-party billing software used to provide the Services required hereunder, and CLIENT will be
given timely notice of any changes in third-party software vendors or systems to the extent those
changes would materially affect the Services. The parties agree that AMB may store Demographic
Information, back-up documentation, statements, explanations of benefits, payer inquiries and
other information it receives in connection with the Services (“CLIENT Information”) in
electronic form through optical scanning or other technologies selected by AMB and that AMB is
not obligated to maintain paper copies. CLIENT represents that it shall maintain a current and
complete copy of all CLIENT Information for such time as it deems advisable or is required by




law. During the term of this Agreement, AMB will at all times maintain a current and complete
copy of all CLIENT Information in a secure, off-site location. At the expiration of the Initial Term
or, if applicable, any Additional term, AMB shall provide CLIENT with a disc or by such other
means, of all CLIENT Data which includes a complete list of the existing accounts receivable (all
debit and credit balances in an industry standard electronic format, including data layout and/or
translation tables (hereafter “Close Out Disk™), if CLIENT has paid all fees due and owing to AMB
hereunder. CLIENT agrees and acknowledges that once AMB provides the Close Out Disk, it
shall have no further obligation to store CLIENT’s data, except as may be required by law.
CLIENT further agrees and acknowledges that if CLIENT terminates this Agreement before the
expiration of the Initial Term or, if applicable, any Additional term, or if CLIENT fails to pay
AMB all fees due and owing hereunder, AMB shall have no further obligation to store CLIENT’s
data, or provide the Close Out Disc, unless otherwise required by law.

It is specifically acknowledged that all CLIENT Data is the property of CLIENT but that
AMB may maintain a copy for documentation of Services and for other purposes relating to this
Agreement during and after the term of this Agreement.

12. Termination. This Agreement can be terminated by CLIENT at any time with 90
(ninety) days written notice, as defined herein, for any reason. CLIENT acknowledges that any
termination without written notice, as defined herein, is of no effect. In the event this Agreement
is terminated, for whatever reason, or expires, the parties agree as follows:

a) AMB shall continue to perform Services, and be entitled to the Base Fees set
forth herein, for a period of one hundred twenty (120) days after the effective date of termination
(hereafter “Wind Down Period”) for all of CLIENT’s charges for services rendered prior to the
termination date (hereafter “Wind Down Fees”).

b) CLIENT expressly agrees to cooperate and assist AMB with its performance
during the Wind Down Period and will timely report, or cause to be reported, all payment received
during the Wind Down Period.

¢) AMB shall discontinue performing Services for CLIENT at the end of the Wind
Down Period. CLIENT shall have no right to require the discontinuation of Services before the
completion of the Wind Down Period.

d) CLIENT shall pay AMB the Pro Rata Charge for Equipment if the Agreement
is terminated by the CLIENT prior to the end of the Initial Term and, if applicable, any Additional
Term.

€) AMB shall deliver to CLIENT, conditioned upon full payment to AMB of all
Invoices owed to AMB, a Close Out Disk of all accounts in AMB’s billing software.

13. Non-Employment. During the term of this Agreement and for a one-year period
commencing with the termination of this Agreement, both parties agree not to employ, directly or
indirectly, or through any third-party rendering services on behalf of such party, any employees of
the other or its parent, affiliates or subsidiaries, without written consent of the other party. Both
parties agree that the other party does not have an adequate remedy at law to protect its rights under



this section and agree that the non-defaulting party will have the right to injunctive relief from any
violation or threatened violation of this section.

14. Notice. All notices required hereunder must be in writing and shall be deemed to have
been given upon receipt if delivered by overnight courier service, or seven (7) days after mailing
(any such mailing to be by certified or registered mail with first-class postage prepaid), sent to the
following:

If to AMB: If to CLIENT:
Ambulance Medical Billing Town of Houlton
Attn: Lloyd Ledet Attn: Chief Milton Cone
P.O. Box 9130 ] 21 Water Street -
Paducah, Kentucky 42001-9400 Houlton, ME 04730-2104 L

15. Governing Law and Jurisdiction. This Agreement, and any addendums to it, shall be
interpreted and governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. In the event of any
dispute or disagreement between CLIENT and AMB, arising under this Agreement or otherwise,
the sole and exclusive venue and jurisdiction shall be in the McCracken Circuit Court, McCracken
County, Kentucky. In the event the CLIENT files any legal proceeding in any other venue,
CLIENT shall be obligated to pay all costs and attorney’s fees incurred by AMB until such time
as the action is pending in McCracken County, Kentucky.

16. Indemnification. AMB will indemnify, defend (including providing a legal defense
and paying all reasonable attorney’s fees and reasonable litigation expenses) and hold harmless,
CLIENT, its officers, directors, shareholders, employees and contractors, against any claims,
damages, or liability (including but not limited to any claims, judgments, causes of action, fines,
penalties, attorneys” fees, litigation costs and/or damages) arising out of AMB’s errors, omissions,
or acts which cause damage to CLIENT, in connection with claims by third-party payers, including
applicable governmental programs and entities, subject to the limitation of liability set forth
herein..

It is mutually understood and agreed that AMB shall use commercially reasonable efforts
in the performance of its duties. Collection performance or CLIENT’s cash flow concerns,
however, shall not be deemed an error, omission, act, or basis for a claim under this Agreement.

CLIENT will indemnify, defend (including providing a legal defense and paying all
reasonable attorney’s fees and reasonable litigation expenses) and hold harmless, AMB, its
officers, directors, shareholders, employees and contractors, against any claims, damages, or
liability (including but not limited to any claims, judgments, causes of action, fines, penalties,
attorneys’ fees, litigation costs and/or damages) arising out of CLIENT’s errors, omissions, or acts
which cause damage to AMB.



17. Compliance. Both parties agree to, and have represented to each other that they do,
perform their respective business activities in a manner consistent with all federal, state, and local
laws and regulations. As part of the inducement, each to the other, to enter into this Agreement,
both parties have represented that they do, and will continue to operate consistent with and fully
comply with their respective Corporate Compliance Plans, to the extent that such plans have been
adopted. To the extent that no such Plan has been adopted, both parties agree to the following:

a) Each party will conduct its own periodic risk assessment and advise the other
party to this Agreement of any findings that may affect that other party’s compliance or
performance under this Agreement.

b) Both parties agree that the other party hereto may review its Compliance
Program upon request.

¢) Both parties agree to conduct appropriate background checks on all
employees, prospective employees, contractors, agents and vendors to assure that all services are
provided by individuals who have not been excluded by any governmental authority or should be
excluded by any governmental authority.

d) Both parties agree to maintain appropriate compliance records and assure the
completeness and security of said records.

€) Both parties agree to comply with the rules and regulations related to the
following areas of widely known compliance risk:

(1) Improper waiver of charges, deductibles and copayments;

(2) Up-coding, unbundling, serial reporting and other coding violations;

(3) Misuse of a provider number or misrepresenting the identity of a provider of
services;

(4) Failure to repay overpayments or failure to timely refund overpayments;

(5) Seeking duplicate payment for the same service and/or from the same source;

(6) Failure to maintain proper records of current and prior billing;

(7) Failure to protect the confidentiality of patient information;

f) Both parties agree that, in the event that they become aware of a compliance
concern that appears to be related to the other party’s conduct, they will promptly
communicate that concern to the other party in writing. The party receiving notice
will take prompt action to investigate the concern and will timely (within 30 days)
report back to the other party, in writing, their response to the reported concern.

g) Both parties specifically agree that they will defer reporting any such concern to
any payer, governmental agency or agent, or law enforcement organization until they have
complied with the above paragraph and remain concerned that the other party’s response is
inappropriate or more than thirty (30) days has elapsed without any response. Both parties agree
that only in cases where a party has firm, credible evidence of deliberate, willful or criminal
misconduct will they immediately report concerns to anyone other than the other party.

h) Nothing herein shall be construed to infer or imply a duty or expectation that any
party will knowingly conceal or participate in any misconduct or allow any misconduct to



continue.

i) It is expressly agreed that AMB has the right and duty to suspend and refuse
submission of any and all claims that AMB reasonably believes are, or may be, improper and
would subject CLIENT or AMB to compliance violations. AMB has the duty to provide reasonable
and timely notice to CLIENT of such suspension and to make reasonable and timely efforts to
resolve the issue or concern leading to the suspension of claim submission. In the event that
investigation is required to resolve the suspension, each party agrees to cooperate in such
investigation.

j) Each party agrees to be separately responsible for their respective compliance-
related legal and consulting expenses.

18. Independent Contractors. The parties to this Agreement are independent contractors
and nothing herein shall be construed to create an employment relationship between either party
or its members.

19. Insurance. AMB affirms that at ail times during the term(s) of this Agreement, it shall
have in force valid Worker’s Compensation insurance covering all of its employees, as well as
General Liability Insurance with a policy limit of no less than $500,000, and Errors and Omissions
insurance coverage with a policy limit of no less than $3,000,000. AMB shall provide CLIENT
proof of required coverage upon request.

20. Inspection. CLIENT, its agents and representatives, shall at all times during the term
of this Agreement have reasonable access, during regular business hours, to review and inspect the
location(s) where the services are performed upon seven (7) days advance written notice to AMB.
Any inspection performed shall be subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement and
shall be conducted so as not to disrupt AMB’s staff or business. AMB shall not unreasonably
deny, restrict or delay access for any requested inspection. In the event that CLIENT engages the
services of an outside party to conduct or assist in any inspection, CLIENT shall ensure that all
other parties are bound by a Confidentiality Agreement identical to the one applicable to the parties
to this Agreement.

21. Force Majeure. Time is of the essence in the performance of the duties required by
each party hereunder. However, performance of duties hereunder may be impeded by occurrences
beyond the control of one or both parties. Events such as flood, earthquake, hurricane, tornado,
blizzard, fire, riot, war, insurrection, or civil disturbance, strikes by common carriers, disruption
of business operations by lawful governmental order due to a pandemic, extended loss (more than
48 hours) of utilities (except for non-payment), and similar events shall excuse the affected party
from performance of services impeded by such event(s). Nevertheless, each party has a duty to
use reasonable efforts to prevent or mitigate such impediments. In the event that any catastrophe
shall prevent the timely billing of CLIENT’s services by AMB for more than fifteen (15) working
days, CLIENT shall have the right to secure, without penalty, substitute services until AMB can
restore services, at which time AMB’s responsibilities and rights under this Agreement shall be
reinstated. For its protection, CLIENT shall, at its own expense, purchase and maintain business
interruption and/or accounts receivable insurance coverage to cover any such catastrophic event,
as stated above. CLIENT agrees that under no circumstance shall AMB be liable to CLIENT for
any losses associated with a business interruption, no matter the reason.

10



22. Waiver. The waiver by either party of any breach of any term, covenant or condition
contained herein shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any
other term, covenant or condition contained herein.

23. Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions of this
Agreement will remain in full force and effect so long as the purposes for which the parties entered
into this Agreement are not substantially frustrated thereby.

24. Limitation of Liability. AMB shall not be liable to CLIENT for any damages,
whether direct or indirect, consequential or incidental, including, without limitation, loss of profits,
arising out of or relating to uncollected or uncollectible accounts receivable or unpaid ambulance
runs. The parties expressly agree that AMB makes no express warranty, nor shall any warranty
be implied under this Agreement in respect of any service provided pursuant hereto, including but
not limited to any warranty as to the ability to collect any customer/patient account from any
patient, insurance company or other third-party payer.

AMB’s aggregate liability relating to any of the Services and/or arising under this
Agreement shall be limited in all cases to the amount of fees actually paid by CLIENT for the
Services during the twelve (12) months preceding the date of any claim made by CLIENT against
AMB.

25. Miscellaneous.

a) This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties relative to the
Services to be provided to CLIENT and no amendments, representations, inducements, promises
or agreements, oral or otherwise, between the parties not embodied in the Agreement will be of
any force or effect, unless in writing and signed by both parties.

b) This Agreement specifically supersedes any prior written or oral representations
or agreements between the parties relating to the provisions of the Services, and any amendments
or changes to this Agreement must be in writing, and signed by both CLIENT and AMB to be
effective. CLIENT acknowledges that all prior representations and/or projections by AMB
regarding potential recoveries of CLIENT prior to the Effective Date are not guarantees or
warranties of results, and are merged into, and do not survive this Agreement, unless explicitly
stated herein. CLIENT acknowledges that AMB has made no performance guarantee,

c) This Agreement is binding upon, and inures to the benefit of and is enforceable
by AMB, CLIENT and their respective legal representatives, assigns and successors in interest,
subject to Section 26 (d) below.

d) Neither party may assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of the
other party, provided that this Agreement will be deemed assigned to, and will be binding upon,
the survivor in any merger or business combination involving a party or the purchaser of all or
substantially all of the assets of a party.

11



¢) In the event CLIENT fails to comply with the terms of this Agreement, including
but not limited to CLIENT’s failure to pay AMB’s fees when due, CLIENT shall pay all costs of
collection including court costs, attorney fees, and collection agency contingency percentages of
not less than 35% to be added to the principal balance as a collection charge immediately upon
default and referral of the account to the collection agency of AMB’s choice.

f) AMB and CLIENT acknowledge that they are duly authorized by appropriate
corporate action to enter into this Agreement and that this Agreement is being signed by duly
authorized agents authorized to act on their respective behalf.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed.

CLIENT: AMB:
Signature: Signature L
Print Name: _ Print Name: Lloyd Ledet .
Title: Title: President and CEOQ B
Date: Date:

12



A.

TOWN OF HOULTON
Business Associate Agreement
Between
TOWN OF HOULTON and Ambulance Medical Billing

This Business Associate Agreement (“Agreement”) between TOWN OF HOULTON and
Ambulance Medical Billing is executed to ensure that Ambulance Medical Billing will appropriately
safeguard protected health information (“PHI”) that is created, received, maintained, or transmitted on
behalf of TOWN OF HOULTON in compliance with the applicable provisions of Public Law 104-191 of
August 21, 1996, known as the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Subtitle F —
Administrative Simplification, Sections 261, et seq., as amended ("HIPAA"), and with Public Law 111-5 of
February 17, 2009, known as the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Title XIi, Subtitle D -
Privacy, Sections 13400, et seq., the Health Information Technology and Clinical Health Act, as amended
(the “HITECH Act”).

General Provisions

3.

Meaning of Terms. The terms used in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those
terms defined in HIPAA.

Regulatory References. Any reference in this Agreement to a regulatory section means the
section currently in effect or as amended.

Interpretation. Any ambiguity in this Agreement shall be interpreted to permit compliance
with HIPAA,

Obligations of Business Associate

Ambulance Medical Billing agrees that it will:

1.

2.

Not use or further disclose PHI other than as permitted or required by this Agreement or as
required by law;

Use appropriate safeguards and comply, where applicable, with the HIPAA Security Rule
with respect to electronic protected health information (“e-PHi”) and implement
appropriate physical, technical and administrative safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of
PHI other than as provided for by this Agreement;

Report to TOWN OF HOULTON any use or disclosure of PHI not provided for by this
Agreement of which it becomes aware, including any security incident (as defined in the
HIPAA Security Rule) and any breaches of unsecured PHI as required by 45 CFR §164.410.
Breaches of unsecured PHI shall be reported to TOWN OF HOULTON without unreasonable
delay but in no case later than 60 days after discovery of the breach;

In accordance with 45 CFR 164.502(e}{1}(ii) and 164.308(b}(2), ensure that any
subcontractors that create, receive, maintain, or transmit PHI on behalf of Ambulance
Medical Billing agree to the same restrictions, conditions, and requirements that apply to
Ambulance Medical Billing with respect to such information;

13



10.

11.

Make PHI in a designated record set available to TOWN OF HOULTON and to an individual
who has a right of access in a manner that satisfies TOWN OF HOULTON’s obligations to
provide access to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR §164.524 within 30 days of a request;

Make any amendment(s) to PHI in a designated record set as directed by TOWN OF
HOULTON, or take other measures necessary to satisfy TOWN OF HOULTON's obligations
under 45 CFR §164.526;

Maintain and make available information required to provide an accounting of disclosures
to TOWN OF HOULTON or an individual who has a right to an accounting within 60 days and
as necessary to satisfy TOWN OF HOULTON obligations under 45 CFR §164.528;

To the extent that Ambulance Medical Billing is to carry out any of TOWN OF HOULTON's
obligations under the HIPAA Privacy Rule, Ambulance Medical Billing shall comply with the
requirements of the Privacy Rule that apply to TOWN OF HOULTON when it carries out that
obligation;

Make its internal practices, books, and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received
from, or created or received by Amhulance Medical Billing on behalf of TOWN OF HOULTON,
available to the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services for purposes of
determining Ambuiance Medical Billing and TOWN OF HOULTON’s compliance with HIPAA and
the HITECH Act;

Restrict the use or disclosure of PHI if TOWN OF HOULTON notifies Ambulance Medical
Billing of any restriction on the use or disclosure of PHI that TOWN OF HOULTON has agreed
to or is required to abide by under 45 CFR §164.522; and

If TOWN OF HOULTON is subject to the Red Flags Rule {found at 16 CFR §681.1 et seq.),
Ambulance Medical Billing agrees to assist TOWN OF HOULTON in complying with its Red
Flags Rule obligations by: (a) implementing policies and procedures to detect relevant Red
Flags {as defined under 16 C.F.R. §681.2); (b} taking all steps necessary to comply with the
policies and procedures of TOWN OF HOULTON's Identity Theft Prevention Program; (c)
ensuring that any agent or third party who performs services on its behalf in connection
with covered accounts of TOWN OF HOULTON agrees to implement reasonable policies and
procedures designed to detect, prevent, and mitigate the risk of identity theft; and {d)
alerting TOWN OF HOULTON of any Red Flags incident {as defined by the Red Flags Rules) of
which it becomes aware, the steps it has taken to mitigate any potential harm that may
have occurred, and provide a report to TOWN OF HOULTON of any threat of identity theft
as a result of the incident.

Permitted Uses and Disclosures by Business Associate

The specific uses and disclosures of PHI that may be made by Ambulance Medical Billing on
behalf of TOWN OF HOULTON include:

14



The preparation of invoices to patients, carriers, insurers and others responsible for
payment or reimbursement of the services provided by TOWN OF HOULTON to its patients;

Preparation of reminder notices and documents pertaining to collections of overdue
accounts;

The submission of supporting documentation to carriers, insurers and other payers to
substantiate the healthcare services provided by TOWN OF HOULTON to its patients or to
appeal denials of payment for the same; and

Other uses or disclosures of PHI as permitted by HIPAA necessary to perform the services
that Ambulance Medical Billing has been engaged to perform on behalf of TOWN OF
HOULTON.

D. Termination

TOWN OF HOULTON may terminate this Agreement if TOWN OF HOULTON determines that
Ambulance Medical Billing has violated a material term of the Agreement.

If either party knows of a pattern of activity or practice of the other party that constitutes a
material breach or violation of the other party’s obligations under this Agreement, that
party shall take reasonable steps to cure the breach or end the violation, as applicable, and,
if such steps are unsuccessful, terminate the Agreement if feasible.

Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, Ambulance Medical Billing shall return
to TOWN OF HOULTON or destroy all PHI received from TOWN OF HOULTON, or created,
maintained, or received by Ambulance Medical Billing on behalf of TOWN OF HOULTON
that Ambutance Medical Billing still maintains in any form. Ambulance Medical Billing shall
retain no copies of the PHL. if return or destruction is infeasible, the protections of this
Agreement will extend to such PHI.

Agreed to this 3™ day of December, 2024.

TOWN OF HOULTON Ambulance Medical Billing

Signature:

Signature:

Print Name: Print Name: Lloyd Ledet

Title:

_Title: President and CEQ

Date:

~ Date:

15



&, State of Maine
Application Copy

File Number: 31708 Job Type:

LICENSE #
RES-23-107002

| LICENSE TYPE

On-Premises: Beer & Wine

- AGENT NAME

EXPIRES
2025-03-21

PREMISES NAME
TEMPLE THEATRE

NEW SECONDARY LICENSE(S)
None selected

PREMISES TYPE
Restaurant (not Class A)

OPERATOR
| TEMPLE THEATRE, LLC

PHYSICAL ADDRESS

ureau of Alccholic
Beverages & Lottery
Operations

Renewal Application
APPLICATION DATE RECEIVED
2025-01-02

LICENSEE
TEMPLE THEATRE, LLC

EFFECTIVE DATE
2024-03-22

STATUS
Active

PREMISES NAME
TEMPLE THEATRE

20 MARKET SQ HOULTON ME 04730-1704

MAILING ADDRESS

20 MARKET SQ HOULTON ME 04730-1704

. CONTACT NAME
| FREDRICK GRANT

PREFERRED CONTACT METHOD
Email

j—



Town of Houlton
21 Water Street
Houlton, ME 04730
(207) 532-7111

APPLICATION FOR VICTUALER’S LICENSE
NEW RENEWAL

I/WE
DBA Ta 12 1_9"ﬁ (ﬁﬂ/)ﬁ, /_1}4/ INC
Located at: /27 /h/]lk‘llﬂ/gjl g‘)L. /W/_fm m.E 0¢75O

Signed,

LI Tg F

27 m[[[{%{ st~ Haflton WIE 2¢/5 o
Mailing Address

207 532 |28/

Telephone Number

(New Application) Code Enforcement Officer verified Town permits on

{New Application) Town Department Restrictions and/or Regulations

{New Application) Town Council Reswictions and/or Regulations

(New Application) Town Council Public Hearing on
Approved Denied

(Renewal Application} Town Clerk Renewal on License # Date Issued

Town Clerk Code Enforcement Officer

New Application Fee $50.00 Plus Advertising Costs — Date Paid _ g
Renewal Fee $25.00 - Date Paid

Date Received




s

Sewal:

January 16, 2025

Chris Stewart

Public Works Director

Town of Houlton

173 Bangor Street

Houlton, ME 04730
public.works@houlton-maine.com

Dear Mr. Stewart:

As requested, please find herein our agreement amendment proposal for construction phase services for the
Reservoir Hill Reconstruction project.

SCOPE OF WORK
Sewall recommends, and will provide, the following services:

Construction Administration

1. Prepare construction contract documents and oversee their review and execution by all parties.
Oversee a pre-construction meeting to review project and funding requirements and establish lines of
communication.

2. Review and approve shop drawings, samples, and other Contractor submissions.

3. Respend to Contractor and Owner requests for information (RFIs).

4. Review change order requests and prepare change orders as needed.

5. Review and approve payment requisitions.

6. Oversee monthly project meetings.

7. Review project when completed; provide punch list as needed.

8. Final review of the project when all identified deficiencies have been addressed.
Construction Monitoring

Sewall will provide construction menitoring during the construction phase. Manitoring shall include an
average of 24 hours per week, including travel, over a 17-week construction period during the construction
phase. We have assumed that the Town will monitor any Contractor Davis-Bacon wage rate compliance, if
needed.

PO Box 150 - Caribou, Maine 04736 - +1.207.492.1014 » sewall.com » info@sewall.c



e T T AT R A A S A S A R S 0 7% e

L

Sewal

The construction monitoring fee will be on a time and expense basis. The fee will not be exceeded without
formal authorization. Should the Owner desire increased or decreased construction monitoring, we can
adjust our site visit schedule and fee accordingly.

Schedule

We anticipate that construction administration services will begin late February/early March. Additionally, we
expect that construction monitoring services will begin late May/early June and extend to late September, not
to exceed 120 days.

Fee
Task/Description Fee
Construction Administration (lump sum) $24,100
Construction Monitoring {time & expense) $52,800
Total Fee $76,900

If approved, the work will be considered a continuation of the services we have provided regarding the
Reservoir Hill Road Reconstruction Project per our agreement fully executed on September 13, 2023; the same
Standard Conditions of Agreement shall apply.

Please review this letter; if this proposal is acceptable, please sign and return to us by email at your earliest
convenience.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact this office. We look forward to continuing our
work with you,

Sincerely,
JAMES W. SEWALL COMPANY Scope of Work accepted by:

: .;mc/?fﬂuMJuwu

Janiné S. Murchison, PE
Project Manager {Authorized Signature)

/ / (Title)

Brett C. Hart, PE
Sr. Vice President of Engineering (Date)

232.23.01

ATHCCompany
PO Box 190 « Caribou, Maine 04736 = +1.207.492,1014 « sewall.com « info@sewall.com

Chris Stewart, Town of Houlton | January 16, 2025 | Page 2 of 2



Town of Houlton

Board/Committee Application

Name; '{‘ i’\ ol \} I _’LYerx\L:\M

Physical Address: \ ‘A\Qﬂ" d %’\" JF\(})\‘\CY\ Me (}'Wﬁo

” (O

Matling Address:

Phone Number: oL E-Mail Address

How Long Have You Been a Houlton Resident: 2.9 Mo

Your Occupation: %?Et.df\ ‘._CU’\CJ UC‘-—CEI/L Qﬁ‘\’\"@\d%\-l‘

Please indicate which Boards/Committee you would like to be a member of:

Any Board/Committee
Airport Advisory Committee
Board of Assessment Review
Zoning Board

Planning Board

Recreation Advisory Bd
Personnel Bd of Appeals

SNRERN

Please state why you wish to serve on the board/committee you have indicated:

’/‘\/“ loe < Ev'eWan C{) Yo (*ommu(\;ik,\‘ and  unuch O
AN USQ\J%\,\ aeNAU U

Please list one reference and contact information for them:

\V\cros&n Gron . — _

Signature: mv%/ %f" L"’

Date: O\ l 1‘511?




TOWN OF HOULTON
21 WATER STREET
HOULTON, MAINE 04730

Phone (207)532-7111 Fax (207)532-1304

RESOLUTION

TOWN OF HOULTON

A Resolution authorizing that Nancy Ketch, who is the Community
Development Director & Grant Writer, is empowered to act on behalf of
Town of Houlton & Shiretown Development Corporation as the
Authorized Official.

Resolved by the Town Council of the Town Houlton as follows:

WHEREAS, the Town Charter requires the Town Council to designate
the source of any money appropriated after the budget is adopted;
and

WHEREAS, the Town of Houlton has been awarded $978,880 for the
Airport Fuel Farm Replacement Project;

NOW THEREFORE, the Community Development Director & Grant
Writer, Nancy Ketch is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Town of
Houlton to apply for, accept, and expend grant funds from the
Northern Borders Regional Commission. The named authorized
official has permission to sign all NBRC investment documents that
bind the applicant.

Signature of Chairperson, Houlton Town Council

Passed and approved this 27" day of January, 2025,



A

SDA SNAP-Ed Connection
== U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Summary

Maine SNAP-Ed nutrition educators have collaborated with community partners to
implement policy, systems, and environmental (PSE) change initiatives that promote
physical activity. StoryWalks® are a movement and literacy project that displays a
children’s book, page by page, along a community walking route.! It has increased the
use of walkable destinations, such as local trails, parks, and libraries.? Youth and their
families can enjoy great literature while exploring walking routes in their neighborhoods
and communities.

Strong partner support and buy-in fosters successful SNAP-Ed implementation and
sustainability of StoryWalks across Maine. In 2023, 6 nutrition educators implemented
StoryWalks in rural communities, partnering with:

¢ 8schools,

¢ 4 Head Starts/early care and education facilities (ECEs),

¢ 1 public botanical garden, and

e 1llibrary.

They reached over 2,400 young Mainers and their families, located in 5 of Maine’s 16
counties.




Social & Community Context

Increasing physical activity and reducing sedentary behavior improves well-being. In
Maine, 43% of youth report that they exercise, dance, or play sports for at least 60
minutes 5 days a week, and about 74% of adults report engaging in physical activity in
the past month. Evidence shows that ongoing point-of-decision prompts like StoryWalks

promote physical activity choices.3

StoryWalks increase community walkability, especially in rural areas where there are
more barriers* to physical activity, making them an important approach for promoting
physical activity equity.5

Community Assets

Successful implementation of StoryWalks is dependent on collaboration and support
from community organizations. These include the schools, Head Starts, libraries, and
outdoor public spaces like arboretums that host the StoryWalks. One educator leveraged
donated gift cards to purchase supplies for building the stations. The staff and clients of
an organization that provides services to adults with developmental disabilities built 32
stations for another StoryWalk. Sites with permanent wooden stations ensure the
sustainability of the environmental change by assuming responsibility for ongoing
maintenance.

Collaborative Action

Educators built upon existing relationships with community partners and schools or
established connections with new partners to implement StoryWalks. In addition to
stations displaying the storybook pages, recipes and nutrition information are integrated
into StoryWalks. For example, one StoryWalk featured the book Pumpkin Jack and
included pumpkin recipes and donated pumpkins.

Educators apply an equity lens to their physical activity access work. Some StoryWalks
were built on handicap accessible trails, while others made cultural connections using
the books selected. Stories in 2023 included First Blade of Sweetgrass, with an
Indigenous cultural connection, and Before We Eat, highlighting the community’s
connection to farming.



Building on Strengths

The StoryWalks in 2023 reached over 2,400 youth and their families at 8 different sites.
Notably, in-person SNAP-Ed health education curricula reached 1,144 (48%) of those
youth, increasing the program'’s impact through multi-level programming,

Community partners are ready to help ensure the success long term, with sustainability
efforts in progress or in place for the StoryWalks. For example, the Porter Memorial
Library has provided space for this project, and over three years’ worth of books have
been sponsored by local businesses, organizations, and individuals. Viles Arboretum in
Kennebec County has provided ongoing support for the StoryWalks at their public
botanical garden, making their StoryWalks a part of their Children’s Forest Initiative.

Conclusion

Community-driven PSE change initiatives, such as Maine SNAP-Ed’s StoryWalks
collaborations, aim to increase access to physical activity opportunities, specifically for
youth in and out of school. Throughout Maine, SNAP-Ed is working to support
community efforts to increase opportunities for physical activity. In 2024, an additional
six StoryWalks were added to Maine SNAP-Ed’s community programming, reaching three
new counties. Partner sites and communities provide funding, volunteer labor,
construction materials, and sustainability support. This ensures these StoryWalks will
remain a viable option for youth and their families to be more active in their
communities.



1StoryWalk® was created in 2007 by Anne Ferguson of Montpelier, VT, in collaboration
with former staff member Rachel Senechal, and is a registered service mark of the
Kellogg-Hubbard Library.

%Lenstra, N., & Carlos, J. (2019). Public Libraries and Walkable Neighborhoods.
International journal of environmental research and public health, 16(10), 1780.
https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph16101780

3Point-of-decision prompts for physical activity | County Health Rankings & Roadmaps.
(2020, -07-15). Retrieved Aug 28, 2024, from
https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/strategies-and-solutions/what-works-for-
health/strategies/point-of-decision-prompts-for-physical-activity



SNAP- Ed

Healthy Eating on a Budget

Dear Houlton Town Council Members,

Thank you for your time and consideration of our project! Owen Gallop and | just wanted to take a minute to
describe a project that we are hoping to bring to Houlton and the surrounding community. We would like to
bring a StoryWalk® to the Houlton Riverfront Park and Meduxnekeag River Trail. The StoryWalk® project is an
initiative that promotes physical activity and literacy for all ages. The project will encompass a children’s book
being displayed, page by page, along a community path while walking from point to point to progress through
the story. Owen and | see this as a wonderful attraction to bring to the community and love its focus on
physical activity and promoting literacy. We envision the stories being changed out with the seasons so
hopefully people will maintain interest all throughout the year and get to enjoy the beauty of the trail and park
all year round as well. Hopefully this will encourage more community engagement with the Riverfront Trail and
Park as well. We have attached a Success Story explaining about current StoryWalks® all around the state!

Each page of the story will be mounted on a 4x4 wooden post that will be staked into the ground. Each page
will be safely inserted into a sleeve on top of the posts. This will allow easy access for the story to be changed.
The bottom of the posts will be held up by a 2ft mailbox stake so it is deep enough and secure, while also not
being permanent. With this option, we can remove these posts at any time to allow for a story change, or
simply have a break from a story and revert to the natural trail for the time being. These wooden posts will
blend nicely with the surrounding nature.

These mentioned StoryWalks® are also recognized at the national level on the USDA website, which is attached
to this letter.

If approved, the first story will go up in the spring with an event to introduce it to our community. If you have
any questions or concerns, feel free to reach out!

All the best,
Jennie Schools
Central Aroostook Nutrition Educator

ischools@une.edu
(207)468-9383

This institution is an equal opportunity provider. Maine SNAP-Ed is funded by the USDA's Supplemental

Nutrition Assistance Program, or SNAP, which is administered by the Maine Department of Heafth and Human
Services (DHHS) and implemented statewide by the University of New Engtand (UNE) through contracts with

local community organizations. Maine SNAP-Ed educates families experiencing low income on low-cost UNIVERSITY OF

healthy eaing and active lifestyles. Contact mainesnap-ed@une.edu or 207-221-4560 for more information. NEW ENGLAND



Town of Houlton
Parks and Recreation Department

To: Jeremy Smith, Town Manager
Houlton Town Council

From: Owen Gallop, Recreation Director

Re: November Monthly Report

Parks and Recreation Department Updates

Elections were held on Tuesday, November 5™, We close the building from October 31-November6 for the
set-up and prep work. There is a lot that goes into an election, and props to Khylee, Shannon, and everyone
involved.

Held a Red Cross Babysitter's course on Saturday, November 2™, They take 12 participants between the ages
of 11-15 and teach the basics and fundamentals of taking care of children, toddlers, and infants. They get
proper certifications and alsc get CPR/First Aid certified. The course was full.

Basketball registrations started towards the end of October. We have programs for those in grades PreK-K, 1-
2, 3-4, 5-6.

Little Shires Basketball camp is for Pre-K & Kindergarten. This will take place on Saturday mornings in
December. We host two different groups to allow for more participants.

Grades 1-2 (Tykes) and 3-4 (Pee Wee) are in-house programs. Currently there are 4 teams in each grade, so
they will each have a practice a week and games will start in January.

Grades 5-6 basketball is a new program for us. Now that 6™ grade is back at Southside and not playing with
middle school anymore, we have taken them back into the rec programs. We have a boy’s league and a girl's
league. We will start the season with playing in-house games, but also venture out to northern rec
departments to host games and travel as well.

Our annual Winter Crafts and Gifts Fair was held on November 29'" and 30™. Despite the storm we had the
night before, we had a very good turnout. We had 56 vendors and over 400 people each day in attendance.
Crafters were very happy and pleased with the crowd. This is always a great event and takes a lot to prepare
for. Already planning and securing vendors for the 2025 Fair.

Working on scheduling for the month of December. We have 12 basketball teams who need practice times.
Trying to find the best schedule that works for all participants and coaches that doesn’t interfere with our
adult programs.

Working on programing for the month of December and January. This includes evening programs for kids,
holiday themed programs, early release programs, and school vacation programs.

After Care is continuing to be an incredible asset to parents. The program has been a blast, and we even have
new sign-ups.

After school open rec times have had an abundance of kids in attendance. Between the gym and the game
room, we have an average of 35 kids each day.

Daily programs have very consistent attendance. These include Parent & Tot Time, Pickleball, Walking, CLA
Special Olympics Basketball, Rug Hooking, Card Playing, Line Dancing, Yoga, and Basketball.

Taking requests for birthday parties and other groups/individuals for rentals.

Girl Scout troops rents some space for their meetings.

Attended Department head meetings and Town Council meetings.

Attended monthly NMCRA (Northern Maine Community Recreation Association) meeting in Washburn.
Attended monthly Maine Recreation and Parks association conference planning committee meeting over
zoom,

Attended monthly Moosestompers meeting. Once we get closer to the event, we will begin meeting bi-
weekly and then weekly.

Hosted monthly vital pathways meeting.

Attended budget meetings and town council meetings.

Continue to keep our Facebook page, website, and LED sign updated with the most recent information.



Continue to help the Civic Center Supervisor transition into the Winter season. Will continue to work with and
help as a resource throughout the season. We collaborate on a lot of events during the winter months to
bring area schools to the park and civic center for outdoor activities,

Anxiously waiting for snow so we can groom trails and bring out our Winter Sports Trailer.

Developed a plan to decorate Monument Park for the Holiday Season with Nancy Ketch, Community
Development Director. Took out what was in storage, organized, tested, and reorganized to make decorating
easier this year. A few Public Works members helped decorate along with a long list of volunteers from the
Summit Academy and Houlton High School. Thank you to everyone who volunteered their time in making the
park look wonderful for the season. Thank you, also, to Jane Torres for your help along with JMM Services for
bringing their bucket truck and getting high up into the trees.

Maintenance, Cleaning, & Inspections

The Park Maintenance Crew, Marucs, Kevin, and Ralph, continue to keep the parks groomed and clean. They
do a great job keeping everything looking tidy and clean.

Park Maintenance crew performs the monthly inspections of the Gentle Memorial Building, Park Facilities,
and Millar Arena.

Continue to perform daily cleaning tasks as needed.

Swallows continues to work on replacing burnt out bulbs. We are upgrading to LED as they replace each,
which means bypassing the ballasts.

Upcoming Activities

Little Shires Camp starts on December 7",

Tykes and Pee Wee basketball practices begin the first week in December. Games start in January.
Grades 5&6 basketball will start in December.

Kids" Night OQut program and Early Release programs happening in December.

Winter Vacation Camp during school vacation.

Budget meetings.

Moosestompers — 1/31/25-4/2/25



Town Treasurer Report

To: Jeremy Smith, Town Manager

From: Kimberly M. Denbow, Town Treasurer

RE: November 2024 Monthly Report
Date: December 31, 2024

The Finance Department as of November 30" has spent 83.09% of its budget.

Bank Accounts as of November 30™, Town Operating is currently at

$4,775,954.08.

RECAP: As of November 30™, we’ve collected about 99.67% of excise tax. This
includes Boats, Aircrafts, and Registrations. Compared to last year we collected

96.33%. Difference of +3.34%.

January - November
Excise Revenues

2023
Boat excise $3,222.80
Aircraft excise 51,660.85
Registration excise $1,054,554.05

Best Regards,

{
WWM«/U
Kimberly M. Denbow
Town Treasurer
207-532-7111
town.treasurer@houlton-maine.com

2024
$3,398.00
$1,179.44
$1,091,587.43



Houlton-2024 01/03/2025

Expense Summary Report

8:08 AM Department(s): 100 - 111 Page 1
January to November

Budget YTD Unexpended Percent
= - Account Net Debits Credits ) Net Balance Spent
100 - GENERAL GOVT 860,998.00 747,840.76 109,045.67 638,795.09 222,20291 74.19
40 - ADMIN 621,067.00 544,898.01 51,791.27 493,106.74 127,960.26  79.40
41 - ASSESS 105,754.00 92,410.48 0.00 92,410.48 13,343.52 87.38
48 - C.E.0. 64,980.00 57,698.51 6,351.25 51,347.26 13,632.74  79.02
49 - COMM. DEV. 66,347.00 52,682.56 50,903.15 1,779.41 64,567.59 2.68
92 - PLAN BOARD 2,850.00 151.20 0.00 151,20 2,698.80 5.31
101 - PROTECTION 3,457,788.00 3,668,354.67 542,480.01 3,125,874.66 371,913.34  89.37
42 - PROTECTION 505,252.00 442,278.71 4,386.00 437,892.71 67,359.29  86.67
43 - POLICE 1,449,882.00  1,439,411.30 244,366.53  1,195,044.77 254,837.23 82.42
44 - FIRE 665,359.00 612,755.37 6,400.10 606,355.27 59,003.73 91.13
45 - AMBULANCE 877,295.00  1,173,909.29 287,327.38 886,581.91 -9,286.91 101.06
102 - PUBLIC SERV 1,260,264.00 1,007,491.91 94,252.17 913,239.74 347,024.26 7246
54 - TREE PROG 7,500.00 5,300.00 0.00 5,300.00 2,200.00 70.67
55 - PUBLIC WORKS 153,760.00 138,380.22 957.12 137,423.10 16,336.90 89.38
56 - ROAD MAINT 270,267.00 229,286.95 1,183.80 228,103.15 42,163.85 84.40
62 - STORM DRAIN 7,150.00 396.08 0.00 396.08 6,753.92 5.54
66 - SNOW & ICE 402,287,00 279,041.55 11,463.46 267,578.09 134,708.91  66.51
67 - SNOW HAUL 2,600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,600.00 0.00
68 - SEPTIC 2,825.00 1,675.00 0.00 1,675.00 1,150.00 59.29
69 - REFUSE 11,200.00 9,600.00 0.00 9,600.00 1,600.00 8571
71 - TRAFFIC CNTL 34,900.00 29,221.58 24,853.19 4,368.39 30,531.61 1252
99 - GARAGE 367,775.00 314,590.53 55,794.60 258,795.93 108,979.07  70.37
103 - EMP. BENEFIT 1,775,579.00 1,606,623.68 43:454.34 1,561,169.34 214,409.66  87.92
93 - EMP. BENEFIT 1,775,579.00  1,606,623.68 45,454.34  1,561,169.34 214,409.66 87.92
104 - HLTH & CULT 351,878.00 327,559.87 38,764.46 288,795.41 63,082.59  B2.07
47 - HLTH & SOC 31,940.00 16,099.43 150.00 15,949.43 15990.57 49.94
51 - CEMETERIES 104,869.00 98,191.98 72.00 98,119.98 6,749.02 93.56
96 - OTHER AGENC 215,069.00 213,268.46 38,542.46 174,726.00 40,343.00 81.24
105 - PARKS & REC 688,841.00 563,022.76 11,342.44 551,680.32 137,160.68  80.09
74-P&R ADM 140,582.00 108,800.85 1,256.15 107,544.70 33,037.30 76.50
75 - P &R YOUTH 94,000.00 97,920.92 695.05 97,225.87 -3,225.87 103.43
77 - ARENA CONCES 15,900.00 5,097.83 0.00 5,097.83 10,802.17  32.06
78 - P & R ARENA 220,358.00 182,411.17 5,647.43 176,763.74 43,594.26 80.22
79 - PARKS MAINT 180,451.00 146,500.25 3,743.81 142,756.44 37,694.56 79.11
80 - BLDG MAINT 37,550.00 22,291.74 0.00 22,291.74 15,258.26  59.37
106 - AIRPORT 208,753.00 114,061.67 42,898.77 21,162.90 137,590.10  34.09
83 - AIRP MAINT 208,753.00 114,061.67 42,898.77 71,162.90 137,590.10 34.09
107 - EDUCATION 2,721,617.76 2,466,992.52 0.00 2,466,992.52 254,625.24  90.64
96 - M.S.A.D. #29 2,721,617.76  2,466,992.52 0.00 2,466,992.52 254,625.24  90.64
108 - COUNTY TAX 821,690.00 821,690.00 0.00 821,690.00 0.00  100.00
96 - COUNTY TAX 821,690.00 821,690.00 0.00 821,690.00 0.00 100.00
109 - DEBT SERV 783,745.00 525,983.39 5,006.47 520,576.92 263,168.08 6642
95 - DEBT SERV 783,745.00 525,583.39 5,006.47 520,576.92 263,168.08 66.42
110 - UNCLASSIFIED 9,37347 158,525.16 60,709.05 97,816.11 44294, 103,65
50 - PUB BLDG WHI 7,840.00 4,546.98 3,407.20 1,139.78 6,700.22  14.54
53 - PUB BLDG TO 36,926.00 23,778.32 0.00 23,778.32 13,147.68 64.39
94 - OVERLAY 29,607.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 29,607.17 0.00
97 - ABATEMENTS 20,000.00 130,199.86 57,301.85 72,898.01 -52,898.01 364.49
131 - SPCL PROJECT B91,252.19 652,723,79 114,002.41 538,721.38 352,53081 6045
98 - SPCL PROJECT 891,252,19 652,723.79 114,002.41 538,721.38 352,530.81 60.45
Einal Totals 13956,779.12  12,660,47008 106395579  1L596,51439 236026473  83.09




Houlton-2024
8:09 AM

Account

130 - TAXES
30 - TAXES

131 - INTERGOVERN
31 - REVENUES

132 - EXCISE
30 - TAXES

134 - INTEREST
30 - TAXES

135 - SERVICES
30 - TAXES

136 - OTHER INCOME
30 - TAXES

31 - REVENUES

140 - ADMIN
40 - ADMIN

141 - ASSESS
41 - ASSESS

143 - POLICE
43 - POLICE

144 - FIRE
44 - FIRE

145 - AMBULANCE
45 - AMBULANCE

147 - HEALTH & SOC
47 - HEALTH & SOC

148 - CODE ENFORCE
48 - CODE ENFORCE

151 - CEMETERIES
51 - CEMETERIES

152 - REST AREA
52 - REVENUE

155 - PUBLIC SERV
55 - PUBLIC SERV

169 - REFUSE
69 - REFUSE

175 - P.& R YOUTH
75-P &RYOQUTH

176 - P.& R ADULT
76 - P & RADULT

177 - ARENA CONCES
77 - CONCESSIONS

178 - P & R ARENA
78 - P & R ARENA

179 - PARKS MAINT
79 - PARKS MAINT

180 - P&R BLD MAIN
80 - P&R BLD MAIN

183 - AIRPORT
83 - AIRPORT ADM.

Revenue Summary Report
Department(s): 130 - 199
January to November

Budget Budget
Original Net
0.00  7,829,598.68
0.00 7,829,598.68
0.00  2,827,038.78
0.00 2,827,038.78
0.00  1,099,800.00
0.00 1,099,800.00
0.00 107,000.00
0.00  107,000.00
0.00 1,150.00
0.00 1,150.00
0.00 130,938.00
0.00  125,400.00
0.00 5,538.00
0.00 38,300.00
0.00 38,300.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 43,200.00
0.00 43,200.00
0.00 191,474.00
0.00 191,474.00
0.00 922,708.00
0.00 922,708.00
0.00 14,000.00
0.00 14,000.00
0.00 34,500.00
0.00 34,500.00
0.00 8,500.00
0.00 8,500.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 3,000.00
0.00 3,000.00
0.00 550.00
0.00 550.00
0.00 50,000.00
0.00 50,000.00
0.00 3,000.00
0.00 3,000.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
010_0 91:3.00"20
0.00 91,300.00
0,00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 5,000.00
0.00 5,000.00
0.00 283,800.00
0.00  283,800.00

------ YTD

Debits Credits ~ Net
0.00  7,512,780.04  7,512,780.04
0.00 7,512,780.04 7,512,780.04
120,897.87  2,437431.60  2,316,533.73
120,897.87 2,437,431.60 2,316,533.73
1,41232  1,097,577.19  1,096,164.87
1,412.32 1,097,577.19 1,096,164.87
785.52  119,28598  118,500.46
785.52  119,285.98  118,500.46
0.00 801.00 801.00
0.00 801.00 801.00
0.00 60,062.90 60,062.90
0.00 5991290  59,912.90
0.00 150.00 150.00
4,268.58 51,522.67 47,254.09
4,268.58  51,522.67  47,254.09
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 29,834.36 29,834.36
0.00  29,834.36  29,834.36
5100.00  182,160.00  177,060.00
5100.00 182,160.00  177,060.00
4884.36  965,589.07  960,704.71
4,884.36  965,589.07 960,704.71
0.00 5,753.88 5,753.88
0.00 5,753.88 5,753.88
0.00 32,066.20 32,066.20
0.00  32,066.20  32,066.20
0.00 4,900.00 4,900.00
0.00 4,900.00 4,900.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 120.00 120.00
0.00 120.00 120.00
0.00 455.00 455.00
0.00 455.00 455.00
1,322.80 79,237.53 77,914.73
1,322.80  79,237.53  77,914.73
0.00 6,149.00 6,149.00
0.00 6,149.00 6,149.00
0.00 0.00 0,00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 65,894.25 65,894.25
0.00  65894.25  65,894.25
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
70.00 7/436.00 7,366.00
70.00 7,436.00 7,366.00
397520 133,52636  129,551.16
3,975.20  133,526.36  129,551.16

01/03/2025
Page 1

Uncollected Percent
Balance Collected

31681864 9595
316,818.64 9595
510,505.05  81.94
510,505.05  81.94
363513 99.67
3,63513 99,67
-11,50046 11075
-11,500.46  110.75
349.00  69.65
349.00  69.65
7087510 ' 45.87
6548710  47.78
5,388.00 271
-8,954.00 12338
-8,954.09 123.38
0.00

0.00
13,365.64  69.06
13,36564  69.06
1441400 92.47
14,414.00  92.47
-37,996.71  104.12
-37,996.71  104.12
824612 4110
824612 4110
243380 9295
2,433.80  92.95
360000  57.65
3,600.00  57.65
0.00

0.00
2,880.00 4.00
2,880.00 4.00
9500  §2.73
95.00  82.73
-27,91473  155.83
-27,914.73  155.83
-3,149.00 20497
-3,149.00  204.97
0.00

0.00
25,405.75 7217
2540575  72.17
0.00 &2

0.00
-2,366.00 147.32
-2,366.00  147.32
154,24884 4565
154,248.84  45.65



Houlton-2024
8:09 AM

Account

199 - PWD GARAGE CONT'D

199 - PWD GARAGE
99 - PWD GARAGE

Final Totals

Budget

__Original )

0.00
0.00

0.00

Revenue Summary Report
Department(s); 130 - 199
January to November

Budget
Net

0.00
0.00

13,684,857.46

YTD
Debits  Credits Net
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
142,716.65 12,792,583.03  12,649,866.38

01/03/2025

Page 2

Uncollected Percent
Balance Collected

0.00
0.00

1,034,991.08

92.44



Town of Houlton
Parks and Recreation Department

To: Town Manager

Houlton Town Council
From: Owen Gallop, Recreation Director
Re: December Monthly Report

Parks and Recreation Department Updates

Little Shires Basketball camp was held for three Saturdays in December. There were two groups every
Saturday morning with 15 in each. This was for those in Pre-K & Kindergarten. The last day we opened it up
for parents to watch so they can see the improvements. All had a blast.

Our regular basketball program started the first week in December. Tykes (grades 182) and Pee Wee (grades
3&4) each have 4 teams. Our 5™ and 6" grade leagues have also started. This is the first time in more than 10
years the Rec has had a 5™ and 6" grade league. We split them up into a boy’s league and a girl's league. We
are working with Northern Rec Departments and surrounding schools to schedule some travel games,

All of our basketball teams have practice during the week. Because of this, our open gym time is limited. It is
open directly after school until the first practice starts, typically at 4:00. The game room remains open until
5:00, so there is still space for kids to go.

Our After Care program is still going very strong. Kids and parents are both very happy.

Continue to do Early Release Day programs. These programs are on school early release days. Parents have
the option to register their kids to attend. They ride the bus directly to the rec after school at 11:30 and they
are here until 5:30. This is a structured program with many activities planned. There are two of these days
during the month of December.

Winter Vacation Camp took place during the two weeks there was no school due to the Holidays. Parents had
the option to register for just specific days or for the entire two weeks. The program ran from 8:00am-
3:00pm. The only days there was no program were on Christmas Day and New Year’s Day, so there were 8
days for this program. Each day had a different theme that included different activities. We had 38 kids
registered for the program and it went very well.

Working with Jennie Schools to finalize details for a presentation of a StoryWalk, which will be presented to
Council soon.

The Elks hosted their annual local Hoop Shoot competition on Sunday, December 154,

Working on programing for January through April. These include evening programs for kids, holiday themed
programs, early release programs, school vacation programs, walk away winter program, and adult programs.
After school open rec times have had an abundance of kids in attendance. Between the gym and the game
room, we continue to have an average of 35 kids each day.

Daily programs have very consistent attendance. These include Parent & Tot Time, Pickleball, Walking, CLA
Special Olympics Basketball, Rug Hooking, Card Playing, Line Dancing, Yoga, and Basketball.

Evening programs are consistent as well. Line Dancing has 25-30 each night. Evening Pickleball sees about
16—20 each night. Adult Basketball has around 15 in attendance both nights. Working on implementing an
Adult Women's Basketball night. Finding times that work best.

Taking requests for birthday parties and other groups/individuals for rentals. Had quite a few rentals this
month.

Girl Scout troops rent some space for their meetings.

Attended Department head meetings and Town Council meetings.

Attended monthly NMCRA (Northern Maine Community Recreation Association) meeting in Presque Isle.
Attended monthly Maine Recreation and Parks association conference planning committee meeting over
zoom.,

Attended Moosestompers meeting and continue to plan for the event.

Hosted monthly vital pathways meeting.

Attended budget meetings and town council meetings.



Continue to keep our Facebook page, website, and LED sign updated with the most recent information.

still waiting for snow so we can groom trails and bring out our Winter Sports Trailer.

Working with Area Schools to host them in the park. They plan days to use Derby Hill, the Ski Trailer, and the
Civic Center as a Winter Carnival event. They bring their students and rotate them through the different
activities. Serenna and | are working together to confirm dates and get the proper paperwork completed.

Maintenance, Cleaning, & Inspections

The Park Maintenance Crew, Marucs, Kevin, and Ralph, continue to keep the parks groomed and clean. They
do a great job keeping everything looking tidy and clean. Once we get snow, they will start grooming trails in
Community Park and the Riverfront trail.

Park Maintenance crew performs the monthly inspections of the Gentle Memorial Building, Park Facilities,
and Millar Arena.

Continue to perform daily cleaning tasks as needed.

MMA Risk Management came through the Rec and was very pleased and impressed with the facility and
training materials,

Upcoming Activities

Tykes and Pee Wee basketball games start in January

Grades 5&6 basketball games will start towards the end of January and early February
Moosestompers — 1/31/25-4/2/25

Started planning Summer and Fall Programs

Initiating planning for the second annual Family Fun on the Fourth Event



TOWN OF HOULTON

21 WATER STREET
HOULTON, MAINE 04730

PHONE: 207-532-7111 Fax: 207-532-1304
Town Treasurer Report

To: Jane Torres, Council Chair

From: Kimberly M. Denbow, Town Treasurer
RE: December 2024 Monthly Report

Date: January 24, 2025

The Finance Department as of December 31* has spent 93.89% of its budget.

Bank Accounts as of December 31%, Town Operating is currently at
$4,774,003.31.

RECAP: As of December 31%, we’ve collected about 107.46% of excise tax. This
includes Boats, Aircrafts, and Registrations. Compared to last year we collected
102.72%. Difference of +4.74%.

January - December
Excise Revenues

2023 2024
Boat excise $3,222.80 $3,398.00
Aircraft excise $1,660.85 $1,179.44
Registration excise 51,124,813.49 $1,177,224.18

Best Regards,

A

Kimberly M. Denbow

Town Treasurer

207-532-7111
town.treasurer@houlton-maine.com



Houlton-2024 Expense Summary Report 01/24/2025
8:16 AM Department(s): 100 - 111 Page 1
January to December

Budget YTD Unexpended Percent
Account Net Debits Credits Net Balance Spent
100 - GENERAL GOVT $60,998.00 B35,282.93 109,540,590 125,742.03 13525597  B4.29
40 - ADMIN 621,067.00 615,070.28 52,047.14 563,023.14 58,043.86 90.65
41 - ASSESS 105,754.00 103,093.46 0.00 103,093.46 2,660.54 97.48
48 - C.E.0. 64,980.00 63,028.85 6,351.25 56,677.60 8,302.40 87.22
49 - COMM, DEV. 66,347.00 53,939.14 51,142.51 2,796.63 63,550.37 4.22
92 - PLAN BOARD 2,850.00 151.20 0.00 151.20 2,698.80 5.31
101 - PROTECTION 3,497,788.00 4,073,670.25 543,294.35 3,530,375.90 -32.587.90  100.93
42 - PROTECTION 505,252.00 526,707.92 4,386.00 522,321.92 -17,069.92 103.38
43 - POLICE 1,449,882.00  1,583,106.02 244,426.67  1,338,679.35 111,202.65 92,33
44 - FIRE 665,359.00 690,579.60 7,044.71 683,534.89 -18,175.89 102.73
45 - AMBULANCE 877,295.00 1,273,276.71 287,436.97 985,839.74 -108,544.74 112,37
102 - PUBLIC SERY 1,260,264.00 1,207,068.68 98,206.49 1,108,862.19 151,401.81  87.99
54 - TREE PROG 7,500.00 7,700.00 0.00 7,700.00 -200.00 102.67
55 - PUBLIC WORKS 153,760.00 155,589.64 957.12 154,632.52 -872.52 100.57
56 - ROAD MAINT 270,267.00 232,837.34 1,182.80 231,653.54 38,613.46 8571
62 - STORM DRAIN 7,150.00 4,012.28 0.00 4,012.28 3,137.72  56.12
66 - SNOW & ICE 402,287.00 381,350.02 11,463.46 369,886.56 32,400.44 91.95
67 - SNOW HAUL 2,600.00 2,600.00 0.00 2,600.00 0.00 100.00
68 - SEPTIC 2,825.00 2,435.50 0.00 2,435.50 389.50 86.21
69 - REFUSE 11,200.00 9,600.00 0.00 9,600.00 1,600.00 85.71
71 - TRAFFIC CNTL 34,900.00 29,692.63 24,853.19 4,839.44 30,060.56 13.87
99 - GARAGE 367,775.00 381,251.27 59,748.92 321,502.35 46,272.65 87.42
103 - EMP. | 1,775,579.00 1,787,825.27 45,4544 1,742,370.93 33,20807  98.13
93 - EMP. BENEFIT 1,775,579.00  1,787,825.27 45,454.34  1,742,370.93 33,208.07 98.13
104 - HLTH & CULT 351,878.00 332,842.00 38,764.46 294,077.54 5780046  B3.57
47 - HLTH & SOC 31,940.00 17,978.27 150.00 17,828.27 14,111.73  55.82
51 - CEMETERIES 104,869.00 101,595.27 72.00 101,523.27 3,345.73  96.81
96 - OTHER AGENC 215,069.00 213,268.46 38,542.46 174,726.00 40,343.00 81.24
105 - PARKS & REC 688,841.00 679,181.29 11,342.44 662,838,85 21,002.15 9695
74-P&R ADM 140,582.00 122,178.70 1,256,15 120,922.55 19,659.45  86.02
75 - P &R YOUTH 94,000.00 107,520.86 695.05 106,825.81 -12,825.81 113.64
77 - ARENA CONCES 15,900.00 18,795.93 0.00 18,795.93 -2,895.93 118.21
78 - P & R ARENA 220,358.00 237,009.10 5,647.43 231,361.67 -11,003.67 104.99
79 - PARKS MAINT 180,451.00 165,091.74 3,743.81 161,347.93 19,103.07 89.41
80 - BLDG MAINT 37,550.00 28,584.96 0.00 28,584.96 8,965.04 76.13
106 - AIRPORT 208,253.00 121,465.50 47,763.61 73,701,589 13505111 3531
83 - AIRP MAINT 208,753.00 121,465.50 47,763.61 73,701.89 13505111 3531
107 - 2,721,617.76 2,721,612.76 0.00 2,721,617.76 000  100.00
96 - M.S.A.D, #29 2,721,617.76  2,721,617.76 0.00 2,721,617.76 0.00 100.00
108 - TAX 821,690.00 821,690.00 D.00 §21,690.00 0.00  100.00
96 - COUNTY TAX 821,690.00 821,690.00 0.00 821,690.00 0.00 100.00
109 - DEBT SERY 783,745.00 525,583.39 B,609.47 516,913.92 266,831.08 6595
95 - DEBT SERV 783,745.00 525,583.39 8,669.47 516,913.92 266,831.08 65.95
= UNCLASSIFIED 94,373.17 227,535.67 60,709.05 166,826.62 -7245345 176,77
50 - PUB BLDG WHI 7,840.00 9,116.99 3,407.20 5,709.79 2,130.21 72.83
53 - PUB BLDG TO 36,926.00 30,536.80 0.00 30,536.80 6,389.20 82.70
94 - OVERLAY 29,607.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 29,607.17 0.00
97 - ABATEMENTS 20,000.00 187,881.88 57,301.85 130,580.03 -110,580.03 652.90
111 - SPCL PROJECT 859,752.19 819,118,95 11400241 705,116.54 154.63565 8201
98 - SPCL PROJECT 859,752.19 819,118.95 114,0602.41 705,116.54 154,635.65 82.01
Final Totals 1392527912  14,152.861.69 1077,747.52  13075.134.17 850,144.95 9389




Houlton-2024
8:27 AM

Account_

130 - TAXES
30 - TAXES

131 - INTERGOVERN
31 - REVENUES

132 - EXCISE

30 - TAXES

134 - INTEREST
30 - TAXES

135 - SERVICES
30 - TAXES

136 - QTHER INCOME
30 - TAXES

31 - REVENUES

140 - ADMIN
40 - ADMIN

141 - ASSESS
41 - ASSESS

143 - POLICE
43 - POLICE

144 - FIRE
44 - FIRE

145 - AMBULANCE
45 - AMBULANCE

147:- HEALTH & SOC
47 - HEALTH & SOC

148 - CODE ENFORCE
48 - CODE ENFORCE

151 - CEMETERIES

51 - CEMETERIES

152 - REST AREA
52 - REVENUE

155 - PUBLIC SERV
55 - PUBLIC SERV

169 - REFLISE

69 - REFUSE

175 - P & R YOUTH
75-P &R YOUTH

176 - P& R ADULT
76 - P &R ADULT

177 - ARENA CONCES
77 - CONCESSIONS

78 P & R ARENA

179 - PARKS MAINT
79 - PARKS MAINT

180 - P&R BLD MAIN
80 - P&R BLD MAIN

183 - AIRPORT
83 - AIRPORT ADM.

Revenue Summary Report

01/24/2025

Department(s): 130 - 199 Page 1
January to December
Budget Budget YTD ---- Uncollected Percent
Original Net Debits Credits Net Balance Collected
000 7,829,598.68 0D.00  7,512,780.04  7,512,780.04 316,818.64 95.95
0.00 7,829,598.68 0.00 7,512,780.04 7,512,780.04 316,818.64 95.95
0.00  2,827,038.78 440,201.87  3,223,22584  2,783,023.97 44,014.81 98.94
0.00 2,827,038.78  440,201.87 3,223,225.84 2,783,023.97 44,014.81 98.44
0.00  1,099,800.00 2,656.92  1,184,458.54  1,181,801.62 -82,001.62 107.46
0.00 1,099,800.00 2,656.92 1,184,458.54 1,181,801.62 -82,001.62 107.46
0.00 107,000.00 785.52 127,651.16 126,865.64 -19,865.64 118.57
0.00  107,000.00 785.52  127,651.16 126,865.64 -19,865.64 118.57
0.00 1,150.00 0.00 966.00 966.00 184.00 84.00
0.00 1,150.00 0.00 966.00 966.00 184,00 84.00
0.00 130,938.00 0.00 62,569.18 62,569.18 68,368.82 47.79
0.00  125,400.00 0.00 62,419.18 62,419.18 62,980.82 49.78
0.00 5,538.00 0.00 150.00 150.00 5,388.00 2.71
0.00 38,300.00 4,719.18 55,094,02 50,374.84 -12,074.84 131.53
0.00 38,300.00 4,719.18 55,094.02 50,374.84  -12,07484 131.53
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 43,200.00 0.00 29,939.36 29,939.36 13,260.64 69.30
0.00 43,200.00 0.00 29,939.36 29,939.36 13,260.64 69.30
0.00 181,474.00 5.100.00 182,770,00 177,670.00 13,804.00 92,79
0.00 151,474.00 5100.00 182,770.00 177,670.00 13,804.00 92.79
0.00 922,708.00 503941 1,040,581.04  1,035541.63  -112,833.63 112,23
0.00 922,708.00 5,039.41 1,040,581.04 1,035,541.63 -112,833.63 112.23
0.00 14,000.00 0.00 6,933.38 6,933.38 7.066.62 49.52
0.00 14,000.00 0.00 6,933.38 6,933.38 7,066.62 49.52
0.00 34,500.00 0.00 32,146.20 32,146.20 2,353.80 93.18
0.00 34,500.00 0.00 32,146.20 32,146.20 2,353.80 93.18
0.00 8,500.00 125.00 4,900.00 4,775.00 3,725.00 36.18
0.00 8,500.00 125,00 4,900.00 4,775.00 3,725.00 56.18
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 3,000.00 0.00 120,00 120.00 2,880.00 4.00
0.00 3,000.00 0.00 120.00 120.00 2,880.00 4.00
0.00 550,00 0.00 455.00 455,00 95.00 B2.73
0.00 550,00 0.00 455.00 455.00 95.00 82.73
0.00 50,000.00 1,341.70 85,896.16 84,954.46 -34,554.96 169.11
0.00 50,000.00 1,341.70 85,896.16 84,554.46  -34,554.46  169.11
0.00 3,000.00 0.00 7,504,00 7,504.00 -4,204,00 250.13
0.00 3,000.00 0.00 7,504.00 7,504.00 -4,504.00  250.13
0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 91,300,00 0.00 §9,694.25 £9,694,25 1,605.75 98.24
0.00 91,300.00 0.00 89,694.25 89,694.25 1,605.75 98.24
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 5,000.00 70.00 11,456,00 11,386.00 -6,386.00  227.72
0.00 5,000.00 70.00 11,456.00 11,386.00 -6,386.00  227.72
000  283.800.00 4,23342 140,706.62 136473.20 147,326.80 48.09
0.00  283,800.00 4,233.42  140,706.62 136,473.20 147,326.80 48.09



Houlton-2024
8:27 AM

Revenue Summary Report
Department(s): 130 - 199
January to December

Budget Budget
Account Original Net
199 - PWD GARAGE CONT'D
199 - PWD GARAGE 0.00 0.00
99 - PWD GARAGE 0.00 0.00
Final Totals 0.00 13,684,857.46

01/24/2025

Page 2

YTD Uncollected Percent

Debits Credits Net Balance Collected
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
464,273.02  13,799,846.79  13,335,573.77 349,283.69

97.45



To: Houlton Town Council
From: Theresa L Duff, Assessor

MONTHLY REPORT OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE ASSESSOR November, 2024 thru January, 2025

Taking various phone calls related to all aspects of the assessor’s position.

Assisting taxpayers with various record inquiries.

Participated in 2024 Budget process,

Continued processing abatements/supplementals for 2024.

Completed 2024 801s. This program reimburses the business taxpayer for qualifying
personal property tax that they already paid on the previous year’s taxes. The program
resulted in $191,214.33 in reimbursements for 160 different business taxpayers.
Assistance from new Tax Collector, Nikki Roy, was much appreciated.

Maine Association of Assessors (MAAQ) Board Meeting.

Maine Chapter of International Association of Assessing Officers (IAAO ME) Board Meeting.
Attended Property Tax Institute training via Zoom with Maine Revenue Service.

Attended Advanced Excel training through Maine Association of Assessing Officers.
Assisted Town Manager with TIF related matters concerning the Airport TIF and a new TIF
application.

Discussion with Cornell Consulting regarding assessment processes needed for 2025.
Currently working on annual Sales Ratio Study for Maine Revenue Service. This annual
process is required and results in determining the overall assessment ratio for the
upcoming tax year.

Lack of assistance for me in the Assessing Department has been an ongoing issue. The
main office has had extended vacancies this past year (2) and when they are short staffed,
the tax collector is not able to assist this department. The assessing office had no
assistance from mid August, when Tax Collector Emily Mills resigned, through to the
second week of December, when Nikki Roy was hired as Tax Collector. Nikki has been very
helpful and | look forward to her continued assistance.

As always, | am available if you have any questions or concerns.

Respectfully submitted.



1UWIl OI rIouIton

CODE * ENFORCEMENT * OFFICE

21 Water St. Houlton, ME. 04730
Tel. (207)521-5928, Fax (207)532-1304
E-mail: code.enforcement@houlton-maine.com

To: Town Councillors
From: Benjamin Torres, Code Enforcement Officer

RE: Monthly Report — November/December 2024

Permits Issued —

Permit Type Owner Location Est. Cost Permit Fee
Building Kevin Weston | 23 White $415,000.00 $1,660.00
Settlement

Road

Building Brown 72 Bangor $250,000.00 $1,250.00

Construction Street

LLC
Demolition Brown 137-143 North | N/A $50.00
(Residential) Construction Street

LLC
Demolition Brian Pacquin | 46 Miil Street | N/A $25.00
(Residential
Accessory)

Addresses Assigned/Confirmed —

Address Owner Location
264 Bangor Street Savannah Cresci 045-0-019-000
23 White Settlement Road Kevin Weston 035-3-074-001
103 Aviation Drive Scott Bates 042-0-009-000
139 North Street, Suite 1 HRS Commercial Management 028-0-024-000
139 North Street, Suite 2 HRS Commercial Management 028-0-024-000

Planning Board Activities —

There are typically two meetings scheduled for the Planning Board each month,
these meetings are held on the 1st and 3rd Tuesdays.

The November 5th regular meeting was cancelled due to lack of business.




1UWIL U1 nouiwn

CODE * ENFORCEMENT * OFFICE

2] Water St. Houlton, ME. 04730
Tel. (207)521-5928, Fax (207)532-1304
E-mail: code.enforcementimhoulton-maine.com

The November 19™ regular meeting saw a short agenda for the Board. During this
meeting we discussed any necessary changes to the FY2025 budget request and
determined that there was no need for additional funding.

There was a brief discussion on a comprehensive plan update. CEO Torres has
requested a written proposal from the Musson Group, a private company that
focuses on planning & economic development, GIS services and project
management,

Code Enforcement Training Activities —
¢ None
Regular Code Enforcement Activities —

Issue/Inspect building permits and plumbing projects (internal and subsurface).
Field and answer code, zoning, and building requirements from the public.
Address FOAA requests as they are received. General public outreach for code
deficient situations,

Inspection Summary —

5 — Internal plumbing inspections

2 — Septic system installation

5 — Site visits

13 — Local Health Officer (LHO) related

8 — Municipal Facility

o During our annual review of safety policies and training records with

MMA loss control consultant Mr. Jason Johnson, all municipal
facilities were inspected for life safety related hazards.




10wn o1 Houkton

CODE * ENFORCEMENT * OFFICE

21 Water St. Houlton, ME. 04730
Tel. (207)521-5928, Fax (207)532-1304
E-mail: code.enforcement@houlton-maine.com

Miscellaneous — Ongoing

Documents to be drafted:
o Building Permit Application help sheet - final revision complete
o Use Permit Application — initial draft
© Demolition Permit Application — initial draft

» During the month of December, significant effort was put into a revision of

the airport TIF district. My role was limited to mapping the airport TIF as it
previously existed, and mapping the revisions as requested by Town
Manager Smith. Multiple revisions were necessary. The airport TIF
changes have been completed, summarized, and are currently undergoing
legal review. Further mapping will be completed as additiona! TIF districts
are revised.

As is typical in the winter months, [ have been spending a large portion of
my time dealing with tenant/landlord issues as the Local Health Officer.
The 13 LHO related inspections performed in the months of
November/December were conducted across 4 different locations, with
each location requiring multiple inspections. 4 of these 3 cases have been
resolved, with 1 late December case pending resolution.

Miscellaneous —- CEQ Comment

I would like to extend my thanks to Chief DeLuca for his offer of assistance with
the solid waste management ordinance changes as related to enforcement.

From November 1%, 2024 to December 31%, 2024, the Code Enforcement Office
saw a total of 263 calls, with 141 outgoing, and 122 received.

Thank you for your time and consideration,

Min ﬂ/\

Benjamin Torres, CEQ/LPI/LHO/AQO




